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NOTICETOSHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 7" Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on
Thursday the 25" August, 2022 at 11.00 A.M (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual
Means("OAVM"), totransactthe businesssetoutintheagendagivenbelow:

Youarerequestedtomakeitconvenienttoattendthe meeting.

AGENDA

ORDINARYBUSINESS

1.

Toreceive, considerand adoptthe Audited Financial Statements of the Company forthe financial year
ended31"March,2022,togetherwiththereportsofthe Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Todeclaredividend onequity sharesforthe Financialyearended 31*March,2022.

Toappointa Directorinthe place of Sri S K Sundararaman, (DIN 00002691) who retires by rotation and
beingeligible, offershimselfforre-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.

Toconsiderandifthoughtfitto passwith or without modification(s) the following resolution as
aSpecial Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 199, 203 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act" )read with Schedule V to the Act and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provision(s) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, if
any, including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force and further pursuant to the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Sri SV Alagappan (DIN 00002450) be and is hereby re-appointed as Managing Director of
the Company for a period of five years, i.e. with effect from 31.8.2022 t0 30.8.2027 on his cessation of
present term of office on 30.8.2022 upon the terms and conditions including the remuneration which
shallbeasfollows:

1. REMUNERATION:
« BASICSALARY:Rs.3,00,000/-(RupeesThree Lakhsonly) permonth
« ALLOWANCES:AnamountnotexceedingannualBasicSalary

» COMMISSION: 5% on the Net Profits of the Company as calculated under Section 198 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (overandabove the aforesaid salaryandallowances).

2. PERQUISITES (notincludedintheaboveremuneration)
» ContributiontoProvidentFund @12%onbasicsalary.

» Gratuitypayableatarate notexceedinghalfamonth'ssalaryforeachcompletedyearofservice.




|

(

!

vl
<

i

SHIVA MILLS LIMITED

-«
N

3. MINIMUMREMUNERATION
In the absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, Sri S V Alagappan, Managing
Director (DIN 00002450) shall be paid the above remuneration, subject to the provisions of
SectionllofthePartllof ScheduleVofthe CompaniesAct,2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER that approval of shareholders be and is hereby accorded in terms of Section
196(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, for continuation of appointment of Sri S V Alagappan
(DIN00002450) asManaging Director,who hasattainedtheage of 70years.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
asaSpecial Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197,198, 199 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Schedule V to the Act and the Companies
(Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and otherapplicable provision(s)
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, if any, including any
amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and
pursuant to the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Smt A Lalitha
(DIN 00003688) be and is hereby re-appointed as Joint Managing Director of the Company for a period of
five years, i.e. with effect from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027 on her cessation of present term of office on
30.8.2022 uponthetermsand conditionsincluding the remuneration which shall be as follows:

1. REMUNERATION:
« BASIC SALARY: Rs.3,00,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs only) per month
» ALLOWANCES: An amount not exceeding annual Basic Salary

» COMMISSION: 5% on the Net Profits of the Company as calculated under Section 198 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (overand above the aforesaid salary and allowances).

2. PERQUISITES (not included in the above remuneration):

» Contribution to Provident Fund @ 12% on basic salary.

» Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service.
3. MINIMUM REMUNERATION

In the absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director
(DIN 00003688) shall be paid the above remuneration, subject to the provisions of Section Il of the
Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Toconsiderandifthoughtfitto passwith orwithout modification(s) thefollowingresolutionas
aSpecial Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) and Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Sri K N V Ramani, Director (DIN 00007931), aged 90
yearsin respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby
re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for second term of five
consecutive years, from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by
rotation.

Toconsiderandifthoughtfitto passwith orwithout modification(s) thefollowingresolutionas
aSpecial Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) and Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Sri S Palaniswami, Director (DIN 00007901), aged 78
yearsin respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby
re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for second term of five
consecutive years, from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by
rotation.

Toconsiderandifthoughtfitto passwith orwithout modification(s) thefollowingresolutionas
aSpecial Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) and Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, SriS Marusamy, Director (DIN00610091),aged 77 years
in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby
re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for second term of five
consecutive years, from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by
rotation.

Toconsiderandifthoughtfitto passwith orwithout modification(s) thefollowingresolutionas
aSpecial Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Sri C Sivasamy, Director (DIN 00002921), aged 65 yearsinrespect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for
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the office of Director and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for second term of five consecutive years, from
31.8.2022t030.8.2027 andwhose office shallnotbe liable toretire by rotation.

Toconsiderandifthoughtfitto passwith orwithout modification(s) the followingresolutionas
anOrdinaryResolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and further pursuant
totherecommendation of Audit Committee, the remuneration ofRs.1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh only)
(besidesreimbursementof outof pocketexpensesincurred by himforthe purpose of Audit) payable to
SriM Nagarajan, Cost Auditor (Firm Registration No. 102133), as approved by the Board of Directors for
conducting the audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March,

2023 beandisherebyratifiedand confirmed.

By Order of the Board
SV ALAGAPPAN
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

25" May, 2022 DIN 00002450
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING ITEMS OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM4

The present term of office of Sri SV Alagappan, Managing Director of the Company expires on 30.8.2022. He is
associated with the Textile Industry for about 38 years. Under his stewardship, the Company has grown from
strength to strength and has achieved the status of one of the most reputed companies in the Textile Industry.
Consideringthe dutiesand responsibilities entrusted to him and the commendable performance achieved by the
Company during his tenure of office, the Board of Directors have at their meeting held on 25.5.2022, subject to
approval of members of the Company re-appointed Sri SV Alagappan as Managing Director fora further period of
5yearswith effectfrom31.8.2022 and also to fix the remuneration payable to him.

The aforesaid re-appointment and payment of remuneration were recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee atitsmeetingheld on 25.5.2022.

The Board of Directors are of the opinion that, despite his age, his continued guidance and direction are important
for sustaining the development and his continued association would be beneficial for the future growth of the
Companyalso.

Further information about the appointee as required to be furnished under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015is also annexed.

A copy of memorandum setting the terms and conditions of appointment of Managing Directoris available at the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours forinspection of members.

Approval of shareholders by Special Resolution is required for appointment of Sri S V Alagappan as Managing
Director, pursuantto Section 196 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, who has attained the age of 70 years. The Board
recommended his appointment for approval of shareholders in compliance of Section 196 (3) of the Companies
Act, 2013, considering his guidance and experience which would be important for the growth of the Company.

Further, the Board of Directors have recommended for payment of minimum remuneration in case of loss or
inadequacy of profits for a period of 3 years of his tenure. The required information under Schedule V is attached
tothisstatement.

The Board of Directors recommend the Special Resolution set out in this item of the notice for approval of
members.

Necessary Special Resolutions are placed before the members for theirapproval.
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Except Sri SV Alagappan, the appointee and Smt A Lalitha, as relative, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relative is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution
setoutatltemNo.4.

ITEM5

Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director of the company is associated with the Textile Industry/business nearly for
17 years. She was appointed as Joint Managing Director (Woman Director) of the Company for a period of 5 years
with effect from 31.8.2017. Smt A Lalitha, a Commerce Graduate and she is also Executive Director of Shiva
Automobiles Private Limited. The present term of office of Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director of the Company
expireson 30.8.2022. Considering the increase in the volume of business, duties and responsibilities the Board of
Directors have proposed to re-appoint her as Joint Managing Director of the Company for a further period of
5yearswith effectfrom31.8.2022 and to fixthe remuneration payable to Smt A Lalitha.

The aforesaid appointment and payment of remuneration were recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration committee atits meetingheld on 25.5.2022.

The services rendered by Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director for the sustainment and development of the
Company over the tenure of office are commendable. The Board of Directors are of the opinion that, her
continued association would be beneficial for the future growth of the Company anditis desirable to continue to
avail services of SmtA Lalitha.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolutionin relationto appointment of Smt A Lalitha as Joint Managing
Director, forthe approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Further information about the appointee as required to be furnished under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is also annexed.

A copy of memorandum setting the terms and conditions of appointment of Joint Managing Director is available
atthe Registered Office of the Company during business hours forinspection of members.

Further, the Board of Directors have recommended for payment of minimum remuneration in case of loss or
inadequacy of profits for a period of 3 years of his tenure. The required information under Schedule Vis attached
tothisstatement.

The Board of Directors recommend the Special Resolution set out in this item of the notice for approval of
members.

Necessary Special Resolutions are placed before the members fortheirapproval.

Except Smt A Lalitha, the appointee and Sri S V Alagappan, as relative, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relative is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution
setoutatltemNo.5.
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ITEM6

SriKNV Ramaniis a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of Directors of the
Company on 31.8.2017. Sri K N V Ramani is the Chairman of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

SriK NV Ramani,aged 90 yearsis a Corporate Lawyer,who has nearly 63 years of specialisationin Companies Act,
Taxation, Labour law etc., He does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in
the Company. Approval in terms of Section 149, 150 and 152 and further approval under Regulation 17 (1A) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is sought for the appointment of
Sri K N V Ramani, who has attained the age of 75, by way of the aforesaid Special Resolution and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Sri K N V Ramani is proposed to be reappointed as an
Independent Directorfor second term of five consecutive years from 31.8.2022 t0 30.8.2027.

In the opinion of the Board, Sri K N V Ramani fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the
management. Copy of the draft letter forappointment of Sri K N V Ramanias an Independent Director setting out
the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to
continue to avail services of Sri K N V Ramani as an Independent Director. The Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 25.5.2022 on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and on the basis of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, recommended the reappointment of Sri K N V Ramani as
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five years with effect from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution in relation to appointment of Sri K NV Ramani as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. The Company has received a notice
in writing from the member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the
office ofIndependent Director of the Company.

Except SriKNV Ramani,beinganappointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
andtheirrelativesis concernedorinterested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at tem No. 6.

ITEM7

Sri S Palaniswami is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of Directors of
the Company on 31.8.2017. Sri S Palaniswamiis a member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Sri S Palaniswami, aged 78 years has more than 43 years of experience in the field of vertical transportation
elevators, escalatorsandallied products. He does not hold by himself orforany other person on abeneficial basis,
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any sharesinthe Company. ApprovalintermsofSection 149,150and 152 and furtherapproval under Regulation
17 (1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is sought for the
appointment of Sri S Palaniswami, who has attained the age of 75, by way of the aforesaid Special Resolution and
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Sri S Palaniswami, is proposed to be reappointed as
anIndependentDirector for second term of five consecutive yearsfrom 31.8.2022 t0 30.8.2027.

Inthe opinion of the Board, Sri S Palaniswami fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act,2013 and rules
made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the
management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Sri S Palaniswami as an Independent Director setting
outthetermsand conditionswould be available forinspection without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office ofthe Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to
continue to avail services of Sri S Palaniswami as an Independent Director. The Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 25.5.2022 onthe recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and on the basis of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, recommended the reappointment of Sri S Palaniswami as
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five years with effect from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution in relation to appointment of Sri S Palaniswamias an
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. The Company has received a notice
in writing from the member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the
office ofIndependent Director of the Company.

Except Sri S Palaniswami, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item
No.7.

ITEM8

Sri S Marusamy is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of Directors of the
Company on 24.11.2015. Sri S Marusamy, was appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive years
foratermfrom31.8.2017t030.8.2022.

Sri S Marusamy, aged 77 years has more than 41 years of experience in the field of agro processing and transport
agency business. He is holding 4005 shares in the Company. Approval in terms of Section 149, 150 and 152 and
further approval under Regulation 17 (1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is sought for the appointment of Sri S Marusamy, who has attained the age of 75, by way of the
aforesaid Special Resolution and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Sri S Marusamy, is
proposedto bereappointedasanIndependent Director for second term of five consecutive yearsfrom 31.8.2022
t030.8.2027.
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In the opinion of the Board, Sri S Marusamy fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the
management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Sri S Marusamy as an Independent Director setting out
the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to
continuetoavail services of SriS Marusamy as an Independent Director. The Board of Directors atits meeting held
on 25.5.2022 on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and on the basis of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, recommended the reappointment of Sri S Marusamy as
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five years with effect from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution in relation to appointment of Sri S Marusamy as an
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. The Company has received a notice
in writing from the member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the
office of Independent Director of the Company.

Except Sri S Marusamy, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
andtheirrelativesis concernedorinterested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 8.

ITEM9

Sri C Sivasamy is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of Directors of the
Company on 31.8.2017.Sri C Sivasamy, was appointed as an Independent Director for five consecutive years fora
termfrom31.8.2017t030.8.2022.

Sri C Sivasamy, aged 65 years has more than 42 years of experience in the field of Automobiles. He does not hold
by himself orforany other person onabeneficial basis, any sharesin the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Sri C Sivasamy fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the
management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Sri C Sivasamy as an Independent Director setting out
the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours onany working day.

The Board considers that his continued association would be of beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to
continue to avail services of Sri C Sivasamy as an Independent Director. The Board of Directors at its meeting held
on 25.5.2022 on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and on the basis of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, recommended the reappointment of Sri C Sivasamy as
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five years with effect from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution in relation to appointment of Sri C Sivasamy as an
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Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. The Company has received a notice
in writing from the member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the
office of Independent Director of the Company.

Except Sri C Sivasamy, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
andtheirrelativesis concernedorinterested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set outatltemNo. 9.

ITEM10

The Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment
and payment of remuneration to Sri M Nagarajan, Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the Cost records of the
Company forthe financial yearending 31*March, 2023.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by the members of the
Company. Accordingly, the members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the
financial yearending 31" March, 2023, as set outin the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution as set out in this item of the Notice for approval of
members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, inthe resolution set outatltem No.10.

By Order of the Board

SV ALAGAPPAN

Coimbatore CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
25" May, 2022 DIN 00002450
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Information pursuantto Clause (iv) of Section Il of Schedule Vis as follows:

I General Information
1) | Nature of industry Textile Manufacturing
2) | Date or expected date of commencement of commercial Not applicable, existing Company.
production
3) | Incase of new companies, expected date of commencement| Not Applicable
of activities as per project approved by financial
institutions appearing in the prospectus.
4) | Financial performance based on given indicators Financial Year 2021-22 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Gross Revenue : 21362.13
ProfitafterTax  : 1786.07
Rate of Dividend : 12%
Earnings Per share: Rs.20.43
5) | Foreign investments or collaborators, if any. The Company has not made any foreign
investments or collaborators.
Il. Information about appointees
No | Particulars Sri SV Alagappan Smt A Lalitha
1) Background Sri SV Alagappan, holds B.Com., B.L,, degree. He Smt A Lalitha, holds B.Com., degree. She is
details is associated with the Textile Industry for about associated with the Textile Industry for about 17
fourdecades. years.
Sri S V Alagappan occupies the position of Smt A Lalitha occupies the position of Joint
Managing Director in the Company since 2017. Managing Director in the Company since 2017.
Under his stewardship, the Company has grown Under her stewardship, the Company has grown
from strength to strength and has achieved the from strength to strength and has achieved the
status of one of the most reputed companies in status of one of the most reputed companies in
the Textile Industry. the Textile Industry.
2) Past Year in Rs. Lakhs Year in Rs. Lakhs
remuneration | 5020-21 68.00 2020-21 68.00
2019-20 67.68 2019-20 67.68
2018-19 67.68 2018-19 39.48
3) Recognition - -
or awards
4) Jobprofileand | Heisthe Managing Director of the Company and She is the Joint Managing Director of the
his suitability devotes whole time attention to the Company and devotes whole time attention to
management of the day-to-day affairs of the the management of the day-to-day affairs of the
Company subject to superintendence and Company subject to superintendence and
guidance of Board of Directors. guidance of Board of Directors.

[ 11 |
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Particulars

SriSV Alagappan

Smt A Lalitha

Remuneration proposed

Refer Resolution No.4

Refer Resolution No.5

Comparative remuneration
profile with respect to
industry, size of the Company,
profile of the position and
person

Proposed remuneration is commensurate
with Industry standards and Board level
positionsheldin similar sized business.

Proposed remuneration is commensurate
with Industry standards and Board level
positions heldin similar sized business.

7)

Pecuniary relationship
directly or indirectly with the
Company, or relationship
with the managerial
personnel,ifany

Does not have any pecuniary relationship
with the Company except remuneration
drawn as Managing Director

Does not have any pecuniary relationship
with the Company except to the extent of
remuneration drawn by her as Joint
Managing Director

Other information:

Reasons of loss or
inadequate profits

As the textile market foryarn is highly volatile, the margin of profit widely fluctuate due to
fluctuation in prices of raw material and selling prices and due to severe competition, the

profitmargin may become very thin.

Unprecedented hike in cotton price both in domestic and international markets over last
fewmonths have hamperedthe textile sectorbusiness.

2)

Steps taken or proposed to
be taken for improvement

Focus onsignificantimprovementsin operating costs, cost controlin all areas.

3)

Expected increase in
productivity and profits in
measurable terms

Considering availability of cotton at increased price and decrease in demand of yarn may
resultin maintaining the production and saleslevelasin previousyear.

[ 12 |
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Notes:

In view of continuing Covid-19 pandemic, Ministry of Corporate Affairs Circular Ref. Nos: 14/2020
dated April 8,2020, 17/2020 dated April 13,2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 2/2022 dated May 5,
2022, and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020,
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, permitted the holding of Annual
General Meeting through VC/OAVM without the physical presence of the members at the common
Venue. In compliance with these MCA Circulars and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the
Annual General Meeting ofthe members of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

. Pursuantto the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a memberentitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not
be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the Memberswill not be available for the Annual General Meetingand hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are notannexed to the Notice.

. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRl, etc.,) are required to send a
scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/Authorisation etc.,
authorisingits representative to attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM oniits behalfand to
vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email
through their registered email address to sharpcs1@gmail.com with copies marked to the Company at
shares@shivamills.com andtoits RTAatinfo@skdc-consultants.com.

. Members are requested to submit the questionsin advance on the e-mailaddress shares@shivamills.com.

. As per MCA General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022 and SEBI
circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2 /CIR/ P//2022/62 dated May 13,2022 dispatching of physical copies
of the financial statements (including Boards Report, Auditor's Report or other documents required to be
attached therewith), such statements shall be sent only by e-mail to the members and hence sending of
Annual Reportby physical mode hasbeendispensedwith.

. The members attending the meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of Quorum as
stipulated underSection 103 of the CompaniesAct,2013.

. Allthe resolutionswill be passed through the facility of e-voting system only.
. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details
relatingto Special Businessinrespect ofitems starting from 4 to 10 of the Agenda are annexed hereto.

. The Register of members and the share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 19.8.2022
to 25.8.2022 (both days are inclusive). The dividend as recommended by the Board, if approved at the
Annual General Meeting will be paid to the shareholders subject to deduction of tax at source, whose
names appearin the Register of members ason 18.8.2022 in respect of shares held in physical formandin
respect of shares held in DEMAT form dividend shall be paid on the basis of the beneficial ownership as per
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the details furnished by the Depositories for this purpose at the end of the business hourson 18.8.2022.

Pursuant to the Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of members w.e.f. 1% April
2020 andthe Companyisrequired to deduct taxat source from dividend paid to members at the prescribed
rates. Forthe prescribedrates forvarious categories, the members are requested to referto the Finance Act,
2020 and amendments thereof. The members are requested to update their PAN with Registrars & Share
Transfer Agents, SKDC Consultants Limited (in case of shares held in physical mode) and depositories (in
case of sharesheldindemat mode).

Aresident individual shareholder with PAN and whose dividend is likely to exceed Rs. 5,000 and who is not
liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-
deduction of tax at source by e-mail to green@skdc-consultants.com on or before the end of the business
hours of 18.8.2022. Members are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, the tax will be
deductedatahighestrate of 20%.

Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of
residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, any other document which may be required to avail the
tax treaty benefits by sending an e-mail to green@skdc-consultants.com. The above declarations and
documentsneedto be submitted by the members on or before the end of business hours of 18.8.2022.

. Asperthe provisions of Section 206AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the verification as required under the
sectionwillbe done by the Company from the Income Tax portal and applicable taxwill be deducted.

. Previousyearfiguresare giveninbrackets forthe purpose of comparison.

. Relevant documentsreferred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open
forinspectionthrough electronic mode only.

. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company s pleased to offer the facility of voting through
electronic means, as an alternate, to all its Members to enable them to cast their votes electronically
instead of casting theirvote at a meeting. Please note that the voting through electronic meansis optional
forthe members.

. The voting through electronic means will commence on 22.8.2022 at 10.00 AM (IST) and will end on
24.8.2022 at 5.00 P.M. (IST) The Members will not be able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date
and time mentioned above and the e-voting system shall be disabled for voting thereafter. The persons
thosewhoare holding shares as on the cut-off date of 18.8.2022 are only eligible to cast theire-voting.

14. Registration of email ID and Bank Account details:

In case the shareholder's email ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
“RTA”/Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being sent on the registered email address.

[ 18 |
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In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/their email address with the Company/its RTA/Depositories
andornotupdated the Bank Account mandate the followinginstructions to be followed:

. Shareholders holding shares in physical mode are requested to communicate their change of postal
address (enclose copy of Aadhar Card), e-mail address if any, self-attested copy of PAN Card and bank
account details (enclose cancelled cheque leaf) quoting their folio nos. to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents M/s. SKDC Consultants Limited, 'Surya' 35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam
Road, Coimbatore- 641028

. Inthe case of Sharesheldin Demat mode:

The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant (“‘DP”) and register the email address and
bankaccountdetailsinthe demataccountas perthe process followed and advised by the DP.

15. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22 is
being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories in accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and circular issued by SEBI dated
May 12,2020 and May 13,2022. Members may note that the Notice of Annual General Meetingand Annual
Report for the financial year 2021-22 will also be available on the Company's website www.shivamills.com;
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Ltd and BSE Limited at
www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com respectively. Members can attend and participate in the
Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only.

16. The Company has appointed Sri R Dhanasekaran, Practicing Company Secretary, to act as the Scrutinizer
forconductingthevoting processinafairand transparent manner.

17. Instructionsfore-votingandjoining the Annual General Meeting are as follows:

18. Instructionsforshareholderstovote electronically:

REMOTEE-VOTINGINSTRUCTIONS FORSHAREHOLDERS:

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can

register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their
demataccounts.

Login method forIndividual shareholders holding securitiesin demat modeis given below:
. Individual Shareholders holding securitiesindemat mode with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a
personal computeroronamobile. Onthe e-Serviceshome page click on the "Beneficial Owner"icon under
"Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added
services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to
“InstaVote” website for casting yourvote during the remote e-Voting period.
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If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com
Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb
/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

o

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https.//eservices.
nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen
willopen. Youwill have to enteryour User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your
vote duringthe remote e-Voting period.

Il.  IndividualShareholders holding securitiesin demat mode with CDSL

1. Existingusers who have opted for Easi/Easiest, can login through their userid and password. Option will be
made available to reach e-Voting page without any furtherauthentication. The URL for users to login to Easi
/Easiest are https.//web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New
System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have
links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to
“InstaVote” website for casting yourvote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com
/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number and PAN No.
from a link in.www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to
“InstaVote” website for casting yourvote during the remote e-Voting period.

lll.  Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository participants
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, whereinyou can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form is given below:
Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off date for
e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1. Opentheinternetbrowserandlaunchthe URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
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2. Clickon"SignUp” under'SHAREHOLDER'tab and registerwith yourfollowing details: -
A. UserID:Shareholders holding sharesin physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Numberregistered
withthe Company.

B. PAN:Enteryour 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their
PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if
applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP /
Company-in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your
DP/Company.

*Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and 'D', shall
provide their Folionumberin'D'above
» Setthe password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one

special Character (@13$&%), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital
letter).

» Click“confirm” (Your passwordis now generated).

3. Clickon'Login'under'SHAREHOLDER'tab.
4.  EnteryourUserID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on'Submit'.

Castyourvoteelectronically:
1.  Aftersuccessfullogin,youwill be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select 'View'icon.

2. E-voting pagewill appear.

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' (If
youwishtoviewthe entire Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution'file link).

4,  After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on 'Submit'. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No' and
accordingly modify yourvote.

Guidelinesfor Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-

voting system of LIIPL at https.//instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as 'Custodian / Mutual Fund

/ Corporate Body'. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution

/authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised

representative(s) in PDF format in the 'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer to

verify the same.

[ 21 |
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Helpdesk forIndividual Shareholders holding securitiesin physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a
requestat enotices@linkintime.co.in orcontacton:-Tel:022—-4918 6000.

HelpdeskforIndividual Shareholders holding securitiesin demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk forany technical
issuesrelatedtologinthrough Depositoryi.e. NSDLand CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in demat mode with helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
NSDL tollfreeno.: 18001020 990and 180022 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in demat mode with helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting
CDSL @cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022 -
23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgottenthe password:

Ifan Individual Shareholders holding securitiesin Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password
or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link
Intime: https.//instavote.linkintime.co.in

* Clickon'Login'under'SHAREHOLDER'tab and further Click 'forgot password?'

 EnterUserID,selectMode and EnterImage Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address.

Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the

Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above.

The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@Q#$&*), at least one

numeral, atleast onealphabetandatleast one capital letter.

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio

Numberregistered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the

password:

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password

optionavailable atabovementioned depository / depository participants website.

. Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

. For shareholders / members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the
resolutions containedin this Notice.
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. During the voting period, shareholders / members can login any number of time till they have voted on the

resolution(s) fora particular “Event”.
PROCESSAND MANNER FORATTENDING THEANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET:
1.0pentheinternet browserand launchthe URL: https.//instameet.linkintime.co.in

» Selectthe “Company” and'Event Date'and registerwith your following details: -
A.  DematAccountNo.orFolio No: Enteryour 16 digit Demat Account No. or FolioNo
® Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit
BeneficiaryID
®  Shareholders/ members holding sharesin NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character
DPID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
® Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number
registered with the Company
B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence
number providedtoyou,ifapplicable.
C.Mobile No.:Enteryour mobile number.
D.Email ID: Enteryouremailid, as recorded with your DP/Company.
> Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the
meeting).

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same
on the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and
participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the
dedicated number provided to youintheinstruction/ InstaMEET website.
Instructions for Shareholders / Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through
InstaMeet:
1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register by sending their request
mentioning the name, demat account number / folio number and PAN at shares@shivamills.com from
21.8.2022 at 10.00 AM t0 23.8.2022 at 5.00 PM with the company on the specific email id created for the
generalmeeting.
Shareholderswill get confirmation onfirst cumfirst basis depending upon the provision made by the client.
Shareholderswill receive “speaking serialnumber” once they mark attendance forthe meeting.
Othershareholder may ask questionsto the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.
Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video
mode and audio of yourdevice.
Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting / management will announce
the name and serialnumberfor speaking.

[ 23 |
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Instructions for Shareholders / Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:
Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer / moderator during the meeting, shareholders
/ memberswho have not exercised theirvote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:
1. Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the link fore-Voting “Cast yourvote”
2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile
number/ registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on'Submit'.

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option
“Favour/ Against” forvoting.
4, Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of

shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under'Favour/Against'.

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote,
click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“Confirm”, else to change yourvote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify yourvote.

6. Once you confirm yourvote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change yourvote
subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members
who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend
/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote
againduringthe meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through

broadbandforbetterexperience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to

avoidany disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is

therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to

instameet(@linkintime.co.in orcontacton:-Tel:022-49186175.

Since, the AGMis held through VC/0AVM, the Route Map of the Venue is not annexed with this notice.

By Order of the Board

SV ALAGAPPAN

Coimbatore CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
25" May, 2022 DIN 00002450
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 7" Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2022. The Financial Results are summarized and given below

Tin Lakhs
Financial Results 2021 - 22 2020-21

Total Income 21362.13 13921.35

Profit before Interest and Depreciation 3115.83 2043.63

Less: Interest 94.35 253.68

Profit before Depreciation 3021.47 1789.95

Less: Depreciation 571.07 568.27

Profit before Tax 2450.41 1221.68
Less: Provision for Income Tax

- Current Tax 705.70 373.27

- Prior Year Tax 31.32 -

- Deferred Tax Liability (Net) written back (52.47) (7.00)

Profit after Tax 1765.86 855.41

Other Comprehensive income 20.21 (16.07)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 1786.07 839.34

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are happy to recommend payment of higher dividend at the rate of 12% (last year 10%) on the
paid up equity Share Capital of Rs.10/- each fully paid up, to the equity shareholders, subject to deduction of tax
at source wherever applicable. This translates into payment of dividend at the rate of Rs.1.20 per Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each (last year Rs.1/- per Share of Rs.10/- each)

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31.3.2022 have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Spinning Unit produced 6514.85 tonnes (5692.36 tonnes) of cotton yarn and
1918.25 tonnes (1551.75 tonnes) of waste cotton. The Spinning unit sold 6469.61 tonnes (5881.65 tonnes) of
cotton yarn and sold 1875.41 tonnes (1538.38 tonnes) of waste cotton.

The Wind Mills with aggregate installed capacity of 10.65 MW generated 157.82 lakh units (150.53 lakh units)
of Wind Electricity during the year. There has been increase in wind power generation by 4.84 % as compared
with previous year generation.
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The power generated by the wind mills were utilized for captive consumption at the textile mill, except a small,
banked quantity of 1.35 Lakhs units, which got adjusted as sales to TANGEDCO. The power produced in the
financial year 2019-20, which could not be consumed by the Textile Division due to Covid-19 Pandemic, also got
adjusted as sales to TANGEDCO. Consequently the value of windpower sold to TANGEDCO and included in other
income amounts to Rs.12.48 Lakhs.

The overall sales turnover of the Company aggregated to Rs. 21,213.87 Lakhs (13,826.99 Lakhs).
IMPACT OF COVID-19 IN THE BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

In view of Covid pandemic and lock down announced by Govt of Tamil Nadu, the Company had suspended
operation from 24.5.2021 to 30.5.2021. The Company resumed operation with 50% capacity from 31.5.2021 to
20.6.2021 and thereafter resumed regular operation, adhering to the standard operating procedures prescribed
by the Government of Tamilnadu, ensuring safety and health of all stakeholders including employees, from

Covid-19 Pandemic.

During the year under review the Company’s operation has not been significantly affected due to Covid-19
pandemic.

PROSPECTS FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The annual performance of the Company for the current year depends on availability of quality cotton at a
reasonably stable price and ability of the market for yarn to absorb the price increases in tantum with increase in
cotton prices, hike in interest rates by Bankers on Working Capital facility and inflationary pressure on all other
inputs.

The Company is implementing a modernization programme in the Spinning Unit at an estimated capital
expenditure of Rs.1500.00 Lakhs proposed to be funded by internal cash accruals and not resorting to any
borrowings.

EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company subsequent
to the end of the financial year.

There are no proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no instance of
one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. The Company has
no public deposits outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

COMPANY BECOMES SUBSIDIARY

The Company has become subsidiary of M/s Annamallai Retreading Company Private Limited, Promoter
Company, with effect from 21.2.2022, consequent to the inter-se transfer of 42,03,546 equity shares of Rs.10/-
each i.e., 48.64% from M/s Vedanayagam Hospital Private Limited, another Promoter Company, thereby
constituting 72.17% in aggregate of the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In line with requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
your Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance and continues to adhere good
corporate governance practices consistently.

A separate section is given on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis along with a
certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, Annual Return for Financial Year
ended on 31 March, 2022, is posted on the website of the Company viz., www.shivamills.com

DIRECTORS

Sri S K Sundararaman, Director (DIN 00002691) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting; he
is eligible and seeks re-appointment.

Sri K N 'V Ramani (DIN 00007931), Sri S Palaniswami (DIN 00007901), Sri S Marusamy (DIN 00610091) and
Sri C Sivasamy (DIN 00002921) are proposed to be re-appointed as Independent Directors for second term of
5 consecutive years from 31.8.2022 to 30.8.2027 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has obtained a certificate from Sri R Dhanasekaran, Company
Secretary in Practice certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by SEBI /Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such statutory authority.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as below:

Name of the persons Designation
Sri SV Alagappan Managing Director
Sri M Shanmugam Chief Financial Officer
Smt M Shyamala Company Secretary
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee comprises of

Sri KNV Ramani - Independent Director/Chairman
Sri S K Sundararaman - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
Sri S Palaniswami - Independent Director

The Board has implemented the suggestions made by the Audit Committee from time to time.

EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the evaluation of Independent Directors are done by the entire
Board of Directors including performance and fulfilment of independance criteria specified in the Regulation
and theirindependence from the Management. Independent Directors at their meeting without participation of
non-Independent Directors and Management, considered and evaluated the Boards’ performance, performance
of the Chairman and Managing Director.

The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of performance of Board and of individual Directors as well
as the Committees of Directors. The evaluation has been conducted internally in the manner prescribed by
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, Five Board Meetings were conducted. The details of the same have been given in
the Corporate Governance Report under applicable Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forming part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees governed under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by Company are given in the notes to the Financial
Statements.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a vigilmechanism for Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics. The policy has been
posted in the website of the Company: www.shivamills.com

POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors have framed a policy setting out the framework for payment of Remuneration to Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The policy is explained as part of
the Corporate Governance Report. The Committee ensures that

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully

b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clearand meets appropriate performance benchmarks
and
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¢) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management involves a balance

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Alltherelated party transactionsthatwere enteredinto duringthe financialyearinthe ordinary course of business
and the prices were at arm’s length basis. Hence, the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013
are not attracted. Further no materially significant related party transactions were entered by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict
with interest of the company at large. Approval of Audit Committee was obtained for transactions of repetitive
nature on annual basis. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval
and Board of Directors for their review. The policy on Related Party Transactions is available in the website
www.shivamills.com

There were no transactions made with any person or entity belonging to promoter/promoter group which holds
10% or more shareholding in the Company.

Disclosure of these Transactions in form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out below:

Form AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : Nil
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis Nil

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact the going
concern status and the Company’s operation in future

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As stipulated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors confirm that:

a)  Your Directors have followed in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)  Your Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for
that period;
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c)  Your Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)  Your Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e)  Your Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) Your Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

The present Auditors of the Company M/sV K S Aiyer & Co., Chartered Accountants, Coimbatore (Firm Registration
No: 000066S), were appointed for a term of 5 years, pursuant to the resolution passed by the members at the
Annual General Meeting held on 20" September, 2021. Pursuant to Section 40 of the Companies (Amendment)
Act, 2017, the proviso to Section 139 (1) relating to ratification of appointment of Auditors every year has been
omitted. Accordingly, the term of office of present Auditors will be continued without requirement of ratification.

Auditor’s Report for the year 2021-2022 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks
requiring any comments by the Board of Directors.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143 (12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company appointed Mr R Dhanasekaran, Practicing
Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The report is annexed herewith as
Annexure - |

The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India from time to time.

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules
2014, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee,
has re-appointed Sri M Nagarajan, Cost Accountant, Coimbatore as Cost Auditor to conduct Cost Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2022-2023. The Company has maintained such accounts and cost records as
required under Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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JOINT VENTURE, ASSOCIATE AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company does not have Joint Venture, Associate and Subsidiaries as per Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. Hence, no reporting of the same in Form AOC -1 has been made.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department, which monitors and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy
of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and
policies at all locations of the Company. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the
Internal Audit Manual. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and to the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Based on the report of Internal Auditors, corrective actions are taken in the respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with corrective actions
thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed a Risk Management Policy and implemented the same. At present the Company
has not identified any element of risk which may be of threat to the existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which shall recommend to the
Board, the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII, recommend the amount
of expenditure to be incurred on such activities and monitor the CSR policy of the Company. The company has
fully spent the amount stipulated under the requirements of the Act. Annual Report on CSR activities and its
related particulars are enclosed as Annexure Il. The Committee consists of the following Directors

1. Sri SV Alagappan - Managing Director
2. Smt A Lalitha - Joint Managing Director
3. Sri S Palaniswami - Independent Director

The Company has amended and adopted the CSR Policy on 6.2.2021 in line with the CSR Rules as amended by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

l. Conservation of Energy and others - The particulars required to be included in terms of Section 134(3)
(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year
ended 31st March 2022 relating to Conservation of Energy, etc., is enclosed as Annexure lll.
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Il. Remuneration of Directors and other details - The information required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March, 2022 is provided in
Annexure IV.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review the human relations continued to be very cordial.

The Company has an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,2013,and an Internal Complaints Committee
(ICC) has been constituted to redress complaints of sexual harassment as provided therein. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

a. No.of complaints filed during the financial year 2021-22 Nil

b. No.of complaints disposed off during the financial year 2021-22 Nil

o No.of complaints pending as on end of financial year 2021-22 Nil
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge with thanks the financial assistance extended by the Bankers for providing the
required credit facilities to the company. Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the
contributions made by the employees at all levels for the excellent performance of your company.

By Order of the Board

SV ALAGAPPAN

Coimbatore CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
25™ May, 2022 DIN 00002450
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ANNEXURE - |
FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2022)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

SHIVA MILLS LIMITED
(CIN:L17111TZ2015PLC022007)
252, Mettupalayam Road
Coimbatore 641 043

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by SHIVA MILLS LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31**March, 2022, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
SHIVAMILLS LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31t March 2022) (‘Audit Period") according
to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 1956;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
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V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company;

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not
applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
(Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the
company during the Audit Period)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

vi.  The following other laws specifically applicable to the company:
a. Textile Committee Act, 1963
b. Textiles (Development and Regulation) order, 2001
c. Textiles (Consumer Protection) Regulation, 1985

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange
of India Limited and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

| report that, during the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc., mentioned above.

| further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorised
representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of periodical compliance reports by
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respective department heads / Company Secretary / CFO taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company, in my opinion, adequate systems and process and control mechanism exist in the Company to

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable financial / general laws like, direct and indirect tax laws, labour
laws, and environmental laws.

| further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

| further report that, during the audit period:

The company has not taken any events / actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

R Dhanasekaran

Company Secretary in Practice

Coimbatore FCS 7070/ CP 7745
25" May, 2022 ICSI UDIN: FOO7070D000382984
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ANNEXURE I

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. ABrief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

CSR Policy - Approved by the Board of Directors and applicable from 9.10.2017 and amended CSR Policy
was adopted on 6.2.2021

Present activities :
Actively involved in promotion of education particularly in rural areas.

Future Focus:
Education along with health and sanitation will be the prime concern areas.

2. Constitution of CSR Committee

S.No Name of the Designation / Nature of Number of meetings Number of meetings of
Director Directorship of CSR Committee CSR
held Committee attended
during the year during the year
. Chairman &
1. Sri SV Alagappan Managing Director 3 3
2. Smt A Lalitha Joint Managing Director 3 3
3. Sri S Palaniswami Independent Director 3 3

3. Provide the web link where composition of CSR : http///www.shivamills.com/shar lici
Committee, CSR policy and CSR Projects approved by the
Board are disclosed on the website of the company

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR Not Applicable
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)

Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any

S.No Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be

from preceding financial

years (in Rs)

setoff for the financial year,
if any (in Rs)

2020-2021

6,467

6,467
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6.  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). Rs. 7,10,72,340/-
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as : Rs. 14,21,447/-
per section 135(5)
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or : -
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, Rs.6,467/-
if any
(d Total CSR obligation for the financial year 14,14,980/-
(7Ta+7b-70).
8. (a) CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year :
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the -
Financial Year. (in Total Amount transferred to Unspent | Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
ina C':s )ea - CSR Account as per section 135(6). VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).
Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
15,50,000/- - Nil -
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing NIL
projects for the financial year
SL.No Name Item from Local Location of Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation
of the the list of area the project duration allocated spentin transferred Implementation — -Through Implementing Agency
Project activities in (Yes/ for the the current to Unspent Direct
Schedule VII No) project(in | financial Year CSR Yes/No).
to the Act Rs.) (inRs.) Account for
the project
as per
Section
135(6)
inRs.
State District Name CSR Registration
number.
- Nil -
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than on going projects for the financial year :
Item from . . Mode of implementation -Through
thelistof | | Location of the project Amount h:‘;del :f implepmenting agency 9
SL. N . activities spent for P N
No ame of the Project in schedule area the project mentation
X projec .
(Yes/No) L Direct
Vil to the (inRs.) (Yes/No) CSR
Act State District Name registration
number
Contribution for _—
1) | covID 19 disaster ) Yes | Tamilnadu Dindigul 1,50,000 Yes | The D';ti::gti Coluecmr'
management o
Promoting education Sri Ramakrishna
2) |. 9 (i) Yes Tamilnadu | Thiruchirappalli 14,00,000 No Tapovanam, CSR00006324
in rural areas R ) .
Thiruchirappalli
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(d Amount spentin Administrative Overheads

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

Nil
Nil

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 15,50,000/-
(8b+8c+8d+8e)
(@) Excess amount for set off, if any
SL. No. Particular Amount
(inRs.)
0] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 14,21,447
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 15,56,467*
(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1,35,020
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1,35,020
*including amount of Rs.6,467/- excess spent in previous financial year 2020-21.
9.  (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding NIL
three financial years
SLNo. Preceding Amount Amount spent | Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
Financial transferred | inthe reporting | under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), | remaining to
Year. to Unspent Financial Year if any. be spentin
CSR Account (inRs.). succeeding
under section Name of Amount (n Date of financial years.
135 (6) (in the Fund Rs). transfer (inRs)
Rs.)
- Nil -
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s) : Nil
SLNo | Project | Name | Financial Year | Project Total Amount | Cumulative Status
ID of the | inwhichthe | duration | amount spent on amount of the
Project | projectwas allocated | the project | spentat project —
commenced forthe inthe theend of | Completed
project (in | reporting reporting /0ngoing
Rs.) Financial Financial
Year (inRs) | Year. (in Rs.)
- Nil -
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10.

11.

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish
the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise
details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of
capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary
under whose name capital asset is registered, their
address etc,

(d) Provide details of the capital assets, created or
acquired (including complete address and location of
the capital asset)

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend

two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5).

Nil

Nil

Nil

Fully Spent

SV ALAGAPPAN

Chairman of CSR Committee
and Managing Director

DIN 00002450
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ANNEXURE - 111
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2022 is given here below and forms part of the Directors’
Report
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i) Steps taken orimpact on conservation of energy;
® Use of LED lights for street lights, blowroom, preparatory and Autoconer for power saving.
® Energy Saving due to Spinning Frame Compact CDS Conversion.
® Energy audit and conservation measures are adopted continuously.

(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

During the year, the Company utilised 146.99 lakhs units of power generated through windmills.
(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment;

Investment for reduction of consumption of energy are being made after careful evaluation of

each proposal.

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption;
The Company continuously monitors the technology evolving in energy conservation measures
and adopts the one which suits the Company’s requirements

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution;
With the measures adopted by the company, there is substantial saving in
energy consumption thereby reduction in cost of production.
(iii) in case of imported technology ( imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)
Not applicable.
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development : Nil

C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review foreign exchange earnings were Rs. Nil (Rs.111.84 lakhs). Foreign exchange outgo
was Rs.106.04 lakhs (Rs. 17.39 lakhs)

By Order of the Board

SV ALAGAPPAN

Coimbatore CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
25™ May, 2022 DIN 00002450
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ANNEXURE IV

Disclosure in the Board’s Report on remuneration of Directors etc.,
Particulars of Remuneration of Directors and Employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(0  The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the Financial year 2021 -22

Director’s Name Ratio
Sri SV Alagappan, Managing Director 125.31:1
Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director 125.31:1

(i)  The Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager if any, in the Financial Year 2021-22 compared to 2020-21

— -
Director’s Name/CS/CFO g ERase n
remuneration
Sri SV Alagappan, Managing Director 47.69%
Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director 47.69%
Smt M Shyamala, Company Secretary 7.69%
Sri M Shanmugam, Chief Financial Officer 10.20%
In respect of other Directors, the Company is paying only sitting fees. Hence not considered for the above
purposes.
(iii)  Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees 8.02%

in the Financial year 2021-22

(iv)  Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company 736

(v)  Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of Employees other than Managerial Personnel
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in managerial remuneration
and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration:

The average percentile increase granted to employees other than managerial personnelis 1.45%
The percentile increase granted to managerial personnel is : 79.00%

The Board of Directors of the Company affirm that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and employees is as per the remuneration policy approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(vi)  Particulars of Employees as per Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
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Particulars of Top Ten Employees in terms of remuneration drawn as required under Rule 5(2):

Date of
Gross Commencement A
. . . . . . Previous
Name (Age in years) Designation Remuneration | Qualification of employment
. . R Employment
(inRs.) (experience in
years)
Chairman and B.Com Shiva Texyarn
Sri SV Alagappan (80) Managing 1,30,00,000 ' N 10.7.1989(38) | . Y
. B.L., Limited
Director
Smit A Lalitha(52) JointManaging | 42500000 | B.Com | 142010(16) |>MnivaTexyam
Director Limited
. Chief Financial Shiva Distilleries
Sri M Shanmugam (72) Officer 15,30,963 | B.Com,FCA| 1.4.2018(4) Limited
Sri VA Om Prakash Babu (52) | General Manager | 15,40,369 DTT 2832019 (3) | Natural Tex Yarn
Private Limited
General Manager Bannari Amman
Sri J Senthil Kumar (52) . 9 14,97,620 | B.Sc., MBA 1.7.2019(3) | Spinning Mills
Marketing .
Limited
. Company M.Com., Shiva Texyarn
Sri M Shyamala (40) Secretary 12,19,200 ACS 18.1.2010(12) Limited
Indsil Energy
Sri R Selvaraj (40) GM (Accounts & | 454563 | MCOM. | 15550184 |andElectro
Finance) ACA . -
chemicals Limited
. . Ayyanar
Sri S Manikandan (54) Factory Manager | 9,47,566 DTT 20.5.2015(7) Spinning Mills
Sri C Bose (59) SIS 8,59,781 DME 1.10.2017(8) | GHCL
Engineer
Sti J Sahayaraj (52) Eﬁg:ﬁ;ged”cal 790,471 DECE 1.5.2000 (22) | Madura Coats

None of the employees, listed in the said Annexure is related excepting Sri S V Alagappan and Smt A Lalitha.
None of the employees hold (by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children) more than two
percent of the equity shares of the Company except Smt A Lalitha. The appointment of all the above employees

are contractual in nature.

By Order of the Board

SV ALAGAPPAN
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 00002450

Coimbatore
25" May, 2022
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance envisages the attainment of high levels of transparency,
accountability, fairness and equity in all facets of its operations, procedures, reporting system and in all the
interactions with its stakeholders.

Shiva Mills Limited has adopted a Code of Conduct which lays down standards of values, ethics and business
principles of management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises of 7 Directors viz., 2 Executive Directors including a Woman Director, 1 Non-Executive non
Independent Director and 4 Non-Executive Independent Directors.

SLNo Name of the Director Category Number of Number of Board Committee
Directorships Membership held in other
held in other Companies**
Companies* Chairman Member

1. Sri SV Alagappan Executive 1 1 -
2. Smt A Lalitha Executive - - -
3. Sri S K Sundararaman Non-Executive Non-Independent 4 - 5
4. Sri KNV Ramani Non-Executive - Independent 3 2 -
5. Sri S Palaniswami Non-Executive - Independent 1 1 1
6. Sri C Sivasamy Non-Executive - Independent - - -
7. Sri S Marusamy Non-Executive - Independent 1 - 1

Sri SV Alagappan and Smt A Lalitha are related as father and daughter
* Excluding private companies which are not subsidiary of public companies.

** For the purpose of determination of limit, only Committees referred under Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are considered.
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The name of the listed entities where the person is a Director and the category of Directorships as per Schedule
V Part C of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

S.No NS?::cct’:,:Qe NErr:;?t?efstngllcjllisr:ge ‘ D(i:raet::etgo?-rs)r,\io; s No. of shares held
Directorships
1. Sri SV Alagappan Shiva Texyarn Ltd Chairman
Shiva Mills Ltd Chairman & Managing 21,780
Director
2. Smt A Lalitha Shiva Mills Limited Joint Managing Director 2,13,680
3. Sri S K Sundararaman | Shiva Texyarn Ltd Managing Director 50,760
Shiva Mills Ltd Non-Independent Director
Pricol Ltd Independent Director
Shanthi Gears Ltd Independent Director
4. Sri KNV Ramani Bannari Amman Spinning Independent Director
Mills Ltd
Shiva Texyarn Ltd Independent Director
Shiva Mills Ltd Independent Director
K.P.R Mills Ltd Independent Director
5. Sri S Palaniswami Bannari Amman Spinning Independent Director 769
Mills Limited
Shiva Mills Limited Independent Director
6. Sri C Sivasamy Shiva Mills Limited Independent Director
7. Sri S Marusamy Shiva Texyarn Ltd Independent Director 4,383
Shiva Mills Ltd Independent Director 4,005

The non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions laid down for appointment /re-appointment as
Independent Directors as specified in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
and Regulation 25 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A formal
letter of appointment/re-appointment has been issued and a copy of the same is posted on the website of the
Company viz., www.shivamills.com

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

During the financial year, 5 Board Meetings were convened by giving advance notices to the Directors. The
meetings were held on 8.5.2021, 23.6.2021, 11.8.2021, 13.11.2021 and 9.2.2022. The interval between the
two Meetings were well within the maximum period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
17 (2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Board is given all the material information which are incorporated in the Agenda papers for facilitating
meaningful and focused discussions at the meetings.

Details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting (held on
20.9.2021) are furnished here below:
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Number of Board
Meetings held Number of Last AGM
Name of the Director during the yearor | Board Meetings attended
after appointment attended Yes/No
as Director

Sri SV Alagappan (DIN 00002450) 5 5 Yes
Smt A Lalitha (DIN 00003688) 5 5 Yes
Sri S K Sundararaman (DIN 00002691) 5 5 Yes
Sri KNV Ramani (DIN 00007931) 5 5 Yes
Sri S Palaniswami (DIN 00007901) 5 5 Yes
Sri C Sivasamy (DIN 00002921) 5 5 Yes
Sri S Marusamy (DIN 00610091) 5 5 Yes

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME

At the time of appointment of Directors, a formal letter of appointment is issued, which sets out roles, functions,
duties and responsibilities expected from them. The Directors have also been explained the relevant regulations.
The appointments are also provided with necessary information to understand the Company’s operations,
products and events relating to the Company.

CHART SETTING OUT THE SKILLS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Date of Quali

A ki
Directors ge appointment fication Skills

Sri SV Alagappan 80 24.11.2015 B.Com., B.L | He has more than 38 years of experience in Textile
Industry. Sound knowledge on Company’s business,
policies, vision and mission, strengths, weakness,
opportunities and threats of the Company’s business
operations.

Smt A Lalitha 52 31.8.2017 B.Com,, She has nearly 17 years of experience in Industry/
Business. Optimum level of utilization of skills and
expertise for business decisions.

Sri S K Sundararaman 49 24.11.2015 MBA.,, He has more than 23 years of experience in Textile/
Business  Expertise/professional  skills/intellectual
inputs in relation to Company’s business

Sri KN V Ramani 90 31.8.2017 M.A,B.L |He has more than 63 years of specialization in
Companies Act, Taxation, Labour Law etc., Sound
knowledge on Company’s business, policies, vision
and mission, strengths, weakness, opportunities and
threats of the Company’s business operations
Corporate Governance/ Compliance Management /
Legal Advisory Expertise/profession skills/intellectual
inputs in relation to Company’s business.




SHIVA MILLS LIMITED ﬁ
-1! i

Board of Date of Quali

. Age . . Skills
Directors appointment | fication

Sri S Palaniswami 79 31.8.2017 | B.E Electrical | He has more than 43 years of experience in the field of
Engineering | Vertical Transportation Elevators, Escalators and allied
products. General administration.

Sri C Sivasamy 65 31.8.2017 Diplomain | He has more than 42 years of experience in the field of
Mechanical | Automobiles. General administration
Engineering.

Sri S Marusamy 77 24.11.2015 - He has more than 41 years of experience in agro

processing and transport agency business. General
administration

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management as required
under Regulation 17 (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
code is posted on the company’s website at www.shivamills.com. All Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the code on an annual basis and a declaration to this effect signed by
the Chairman is attached to this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee consists of following Directors:

- No of Meetings
SL.No Name Position Attended
1. Sri KNV Ramani Chairman - Independent 5
2. Sri S K Sundararaman Member - Non-Executive 5
Non - Independent
3. Sri S Palaniswami Member - Independent 5

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set out in Regulation 18 (3) read with Part C of Schedule
Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which inter-alia includes the
following:

a) Review of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

b) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company;

c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;

d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

i. matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
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ii. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
iii.  major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;
iv.  significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
V. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
vi.  disclosure of any related party transactions; and
vii.  modified opinions in the draft audit report.
e) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

f) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

o)) Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
h)  Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

D} Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

K) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

D Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

m)  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

n)  Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

o)  Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;

p) Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

@  To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

r To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
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s) Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc., of the candidate;

t) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

u)  To Review the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans/advances/ investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provision.

v)  The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

2)  statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee),
submitted by management;

3) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

5)  the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the audit committee.

6)  statement of deviations:

i. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

ii. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

During the financial year, the Audit Committee met 5 times on 8.5.2021, 21.6.2021,11.8.2021,13.11.2021 and
9.2.2022. The Audit Committee Chairman was present at the last AGM .

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 Directors, two of whom are independent:

SL.No. Name of the Director Position
1. Sri S Palaniswami Chairman
2. Sri S K Sundararaman Member
3. Sri C Sivasamy Member

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman was present at the last Annual General Meeting. The
other members of the Committee were present at the meeting.
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The terms of reference specified by Board of Directors to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as
under:

(a) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

(b) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of
directors;

(c) devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

(d) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their
appointment and removal.

(e) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of
the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

(f) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner
of selection of Board of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Managerial Personnel. The policy is
accordingly derived from the said Charter. The policy on remuneration is available in the following weblink:
www.shivamills.com

Evaluation criteria

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the methodology and criteria to evaluate
the performance of the Board and each Director. The evaluation of the performance of the Board and its
committees are evaluated through a questionnaire circulated to all directors and based upon the response
to the questionnaire, the directors do a self-evaluation of their performance. Accordingly, Board reviewed the
performance of each of the directors and expressed their satisfaction.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Managing Director was carried out separately by the
Independent Directors. The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction on the performance of the
Chairman and the Managing Director and Joint Managing Director.

Remuneration to Managing Director and Joint Managing Director:

Name Designation Remuneration per annum
(Rs. in lakhs)
Sri SV Alagappan Managing Director 130.00
Smt A Lalitha Joint Managing Director 130.00
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Remuneration paid to Director

All the non-executive Directors are paid with sitting fee of Rs.10,000/- as recommended by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved at the Board Meeting held on 14.8.2018 for each Board Meeting and
Audit Committee Meeting attended by them.

Meeting of Independent Directors
During the year under review the Independent Directors met on 9.2.2022 for the following purposes:
* Evaluation of performance of non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole

. Evaluation of performance of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
. Evaluation of quality and flow of information to the Board

All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which shall recommend to the
Board, the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in schedule VII, of the Companies Act, 2013
recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities and monitor the CSR policy of the
Company. The company has fully spent the amount stipulated under the requirements of the Act. Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee consisting of the following Directors with effect from 12.2.2018.

1. Sri SV Alagappan - Managing Director

2. Smt A Lalitha - Joint Managing Director

3. Sri S Palaniswami - Independent Director
SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has no material subsidiary within the meaning of Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The company has adopted a Policy for determining material
subsidiary and is available on the weblink: https://www.shivamills.com/shares/policies

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted policy on dealing with Related parties. The same is disclosed in the website of the
company and is available in the following weblink: https://www.shivamills.com/shares/policies

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Requirement of constitution of Risk Management Committee pursuant to Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

Disclosures regarding commodity price risk and hedging activities pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with clause
9(n) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company has adopted Policy on Foreign Exchange Risk Management on 28.5.2018.

Exposure to commodity risks faced by the company throughout the year
Total exposure of the Company to commaodities in INR : Nil

Exposure of the company to various commodities : Nil
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Exposure in .Exposure % of such exposure hedged through commodity derivatives
. in quantity
Commodity | INR towards d
name the particular | Fermstowards | pomestic Market International Market Total
. the particular
commodity .
commodity OTC Exchange oTC Exchange

WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM

The The Company has established a whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to report
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of the code of conduct or
ethics policy. This mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of directors/employees who
avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The whistle
blower policy is posted on the company’s website at the link www.shivamills.com

SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON 31.3.2022

Name of the Director No. of shares held
Sri S K Sundararaman Nil
Sri KNV Ramani Nil
Sri S Palaniswami Nil
Sri C Sivasamy Nil
Sri S Marusamy 4005

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was formed to specifically look into shareholders/investors
complaints if any, on transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of declared dividend, etc.,
and also the action taken by the Company on those matters.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of:

S.No Name of the Director Position
1. Sri KNV Ramani Chairman
2. Sri S K Sundararaman Member
3, Smt A Lalitha Member

Smt M Shyamala, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

The company has not received any complaints from the Investors for redressal during the year and there were
no complaint pending at the beginning of the year.
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CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have furnished a certificate relating to financial statements
and internal controls and systems to the Board of Directors as prescribed under Regulation 17(8) read with Part
B of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Board
took the same on record.

INSIDER TRADING

In compliance with SEBI Regulations in prohibition of insider trading the company has framed a comprehensive
Code of Conduct. The Code lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made by

the management staff while dealing with the shares of the company

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details of last three Annual General Meetings and Special Resolutions passed thereat are as follows:

AGM Da-te & Location Sz ilhtseldons Voting Pattern
Time Passed
4th 19.8.2019 Nani Kalai Arangam, Mani Nil Not Applicable
12.15PM. Higher Secondary School,
Pappanaickenpalayam,
Coimbatore 641 037
5t 28.9.2020 through Video Conference | Continuation of present| Total Votes polled: 65,94,784
10.30AM (VC) / Other Audio Visual | terms of Directorship of | Votes polled for: 65,94,484
Means (OAVM) Sri S Marusamy, who has| Votesagainst:300
attained the age of 75 years. Votes neutral : Nil
6t 20.9.2021 through Video Conference | 1.Modification of remuneration | Total Votes polled : 64,50,722
9.30AM (VC) / Other Audio Visual payable to Sri SV Alagappan, | Votes polled for: 64,50,382
Means (OAVM) Managing Director (DIN | Votes against:340
00002450) Votes neutral : Nil

2.Modification of remuneration
payable to Smt A Lalitha,
Joint Managing Director (DIN
00003688)

Total Votes polled: 64,71,962
Votes polled for: 64,71,622
Votes against: 340

Votes neutral : Nil

Sri R Dhanasekaran, Practicing Company Secretary, Coimbatore was appointed as Scrutinizer to conduct the

voting process.

There is no Special Resolution being proposed for the approval of shareholders through postal ballot in the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURES

The Company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with the related parties
having potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

There was no instance of non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

EM
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o The company has a Whistle Blower Policy in place and No personnel has been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

o The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 34(3) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in respect of Non-
mandatory requirements the company has complied the conditions except the suggestion relating
to appointment of separate persons to the post of Chairman and Managing Director/CEO and
circulation of half Yearly financial results to each household of the shareholder.

° The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions

placements, hence no reporting of utilisation of the same is made as specified under Regulation
32 (7A).

o There were no instances of Board for non-acceptance of any recommendation of any Committee of
the Board which is mandatorily required during the Financial Year.

° The Company has obtained a Certificate from Sri R Dhanasekaran, Company Secretary in Practice
under clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is
annexed to this report as Annexure.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

i) The quarterly/half-yearly/annual financial results of the Company are announced within the
stipulated period and are normally published in Business Standard (English) and Makkal Kural (Tamil)
newspapers. The results and news items relating to the company are displayed in company’s website
www.shivamills.com

ii) The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report.
SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Day and Date : Thursday, 25" August, 2022

Time : 11.00AM

Venue : Video Conferencing (VC)/other Audio-Visual Means
(“OVAM”)

Financial Year
Results Announced : 25.5.2022

Dividend payment Date : on or before 6.9.2022
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i) During first/second week of August and
November 2022, February and May 2023
or as stipulated by SEBI from time to time.

Announcement of quarterly Results

ii) the financial results are displayed on the website of
the Company www.shivamills.com

Date of Book closure for the purpose of Dividend and Annual General Meeting 19.8.2022 to 25.8.2022
(both days are inclusive)
Share Price Movement

The high and low quotations of the company’s shares on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE
Limited together with Nifty and SENSEX from April 2021 to March 2022 were:

SHARSEGIEE NSE - NIFTY BSE - SENSEX
MONTH NSE (Rs.Ps) BSE (Rs.Ps)
High Low High Low High Low High Low

April2021 | 4850 | 4405 | 4820 4020 | 15044.35 | 14151.40 | 50375.77 | 47204.50
May 65.65 | 4420 | 6550 43.75 | 15606.35 | 14416.25 | 52013.22 | 48028.07
June 8735 | 6565 | 87.50 67.50 | 15915.65 | 15450.90 | 53126.73 | 51450.58
July 11430 | 8250 | 11445 | 8290 | 15962.25 | 15513.45 | 53290.81 | 51802.73
August | 11315 | 7155 | 1138 71.85 | 17153.50 | 15834.65 | 57625.26 | 52804.08
September | 9495 | 7750 | 95.45 77.95 | 17947.65 | 17055.05 | 60412.32 | 57263.90
October | 111.70 | 8310 | 11000 | 81.60 | 18604.45 | 17452.90 | 62245.43 | 58551.14
November | 129.00 | 94.85 | 12930 | 91.10 |18210.15 | 16782.40 | 61036.56 | 56382.93
December | 173.60 | 9510 | 173.40 | 96.80 | 17639.50 | 16410.20 | 59203.37 | 55132.68
Jaz%uzazry 204.80 | 14630 | 209.00 | 145.75 | 18350.95 | 16836.80 | 61475.15 | 56409.63
February | 179.90 | 10525 | 180.00 | 106.05 | 17794.60 | 16203.25 | 59618.51 | 54383.20
March | 119.80 | 9405 | 119.60 | 94.85 | 17559.80 | 15671.45 | 58890.92 | 52260.82

SHARE DETAILS

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
“Exchange Plaza”

Bandra-Kurla Complex Bandra (E)

Mumbai 400 051

Stock Code:
SHIVAMILLS

Stock Code:
540961

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy
Towers Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400 001
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Based on the closing quotation of Rs.102.15 as at 31.3.2022 at NSE Mumbai, the market capitalization of the
company was Rs. 88.28 Crore.

The company has paid Annual Listing Fees for the year 2022-2023.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments

The company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The shares of the company are in compulsory demat segment. The company’s shares are available for trading in
the depository systems of both the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Members have option to hold their shares in demat form (i.e electronic mode)
either through the NSDL or CDSL. ISIN allotted to our company is INE644Y01017. As on 31.3.2022 96.75% of
the shares of the Company have been dematerialised. The whole of the Promoters Shareholding have been
dematerialised.

SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

S.K.D.C Consultants Limited Phone: (0422) 4958995, 2539835, 2539836
‘Surya’ 35, Mayflower Avenue Fax: (0422) 2539837

Behind Senthil Nagar E-mail :info@skdc-consultants.com

Sowripalyam Road, Coimbatore - 641028

Share Transfer documents, Non-Receipt of share certificates sent for transfer, nomination forms and change of
address may directly be sent to the above address.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The Share Transfers in physical form were discontinued w.e.f. 1.4.2019 as per SEBI guidelines. Transmission/
Transposition requests, if any, which are in physical form are registered and returned within 30 days from the
date of receipt if they are in order. The same are approved by the Share Transfer Committee who usually meets,
if needed.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.3.2022

CATEGORY No. of Shares Percentage of
Held Shareholding
Promoter’s Holding 6475916 74.94
Banks/Fls/Mutual Funds 67749 0.78
Private Corporate Bodies 55741 0.65
Indian Public 1977998 22.88
NRI/OCBs 64404 0.75
Total 8641808 100.00
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DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

In In terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Part F of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into with Stock Exchange, the Company has opened Demat Suspense
Account in the name of “*Shiva Mills Limited -Unclaimed Shares Demat Suspense Account” and 1280
equity shares which are remains unclaimed and laying with erstwhile holding Company viz., Shiva Texyarn
Limited during the course of Demerger, were transferred to Shiva Mills Limited on 25.8.2020.

An amount of Rs.636 is outstanding as on 31.3.2022 payable to 19 shareholders in respect of fractional shares
sold in terms of Clause 9.3.3 of the Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) dt.23.8.2017 approved by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Division Bench, Chennai. The payments made to them are returned undelivered
and the said amount is kept in a separate Bank Account viz., “SHIVA MILLS LIMITED - UNPAID FRACTIONAL
SHARES AMOUNT ACCOUNT”

The details of the above are available on the website of the Company www.shivamills.com

PLANT LOCATIONS

Spinning Unit

Velvarkottai village Dindigul District, Tamilnadu
Windmill Units
I[rukkandurai, Tirunelveli, Tamilnadu Dhanakarkulam, Tirunelveli, Tamilnadu

Gathalrev, Dharapuram Tk, Tamilnadu Vadavalli, Sulur Tk, Tamilnadu

Varapatti, Sulur Tk, Tamilnadu

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
All investor related queries and complaints may be sent to the following address:

The Company Secretary,

Shiva Mills Limited,

Regd. Office: 252, Mettupalayam Road,
Coimbatore-641 043

E-mail: shares@shivamills.com
CREDIT RATINGS

Credit ratings obtained by the Company and revisions thereto during the financial year 2021 - 22 for credit
facilities availed by the Company from Banks are as follows :

Communication

Rating Agency No Nature of facility Rating Rating action
CARE Ratings CARE/CMBO/ i CARE BBB; Stable (Triple B;
Limited RL/2021-22/1052 | -ong-term Bank facilities Outlook: Stable) Reaffirmed

CARE BBB; Stable/CARE A3+
(Triple B; Outlook: Stable / A | Reaffirmed
Three Plus)

Long Term / Short Term Bank
Facilities

Short Term Bank Facilities CARE A3+ (A Three Plus) Reaffirmed
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AUDITORS FEES

The total fees for all services paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors during the year 2021-22 is as

follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Payments to auditors comprises (net of GST/
service tax input credit, where applicable):
For Statutory audit fees 2.50 2.50
For Tax Audit 1.50 1.50
For taxation matters 1.10 1.35
For Other Services
Limited Review Report 1.35 1.35
Certification Services 0.14 0.36
Others 0.80 0.80
Reimbursement of Expenses
Total 7.39 7.86
By Order of the Board
SV ALAGAPPAN
Coimbatore CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

25 May, 2022

DIN 00002450
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ANNEXURE
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

SHIVA MILLS LIMITED

CIN: L17111TZ2015PLC022007

Registered office: 252,Mettupalayam Road,
Coimbatore-641043.

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
SHIVAMILLS LIMITED having CIN: L17111TZ2015PLC022007 and having registered office at 252, Mettupalayam
Road, Coimbatore-641043 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 10() of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification.

Signature
Name: R Dhanasekaran
Company Secretary in Practice
Place :Coimbatore FCS 7070/ CP 7745
Date : 25" May, 2022 ICSI UDIN: FOO7070D000383127
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPANY’S BUSINESS

The Company’s principal line of business is manufacturing and marketing of Cotton Yarn. The Company has a
spinning unit near Dindigul, Tamil Nadu with an installed capacity of 39072 spindles and 22 Windmills with an
installed capacity of 10.65 MW.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

Global growth is projected to slow from an estimated 6.1 percent in 2021 to 3.6 percent in 2022 and 2023.
This is 0.8 and 0.2 percentage points lower for 2022 and 2023 than projected in January. Beyond 2023, global
growth is forecast to decline to about 3.3 percent over the medium term.

INDIAN ECONOMY

Indian economy contracted by 6.6 per cent in 2020-21 as against the earlier estimate of 7.3 per cent decline,
showing that the COVID-19 pandemic hit economy did not perform as badly as was initially worked out.

The Monetary Policy Committee of RBI has projected the real GDP growth at 7.2% in fiscal year 2022-23

OPPORTUNITIES

Indian Textiles industry plays a vital role in the country’s economy and it is our largest and most labour intensive
manufacturing industry. Textiles industry is one of the oldest industries in India and, in spite of significant
automation and modernization in recent years, around 80% of the industry is still in the SME sector, providing
livelihood level employment to artisans and rural workers.

India’s textiles industry contributed seven per cent of the industry output (in value terms). It contributed 5 per
cent to the GDP of India and employed more than 45 million workers directly, mostly the rural poor and women.
Textile industry is the second largest producer of employment next to agriculture. The sector contributed 12
percent to India’s export earnings. India is the 6th largest exporter of Textiles & Apparel in the world.

OUTLOOK

Unprecedented hike in cotton price both in domestic and international markets over last few months have
hampered the textile sector business.

Indigenous production of cotton needs to be improved in future by cultivating high yield varieties of cotton to
control cotton prices.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Availability of Cotton, the main raw material for manufacture of Cotton Yarn, is subject to the vagaries of nature
and the prices also fluctuate wildly based on supply/demand in the World market. Availability of skilled labour,
competition from low cost producing Countries having preferential trade agreement with developed economies,
fluctuations in foreign exchange markets are some of the risks faced by the textile Industry.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The The Company has adequate internal control procedures and systems commensurate with its size and
nature of its business for purchase of raw materials, plant and machinery, components and other items and
sale of goods. The checks and controls are reviewed by the Audit Committee for improvement in each of these
areas on a periodical basis. The internal control systems are improved and modified continuously to meet with
changes in business conditions, statutory and accounting requirements.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The financial performance of the Company has been discussed at length in Directors’ Report to the Members.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 AND 2021-22

Comparative key financial ratios are furnished below. The ratios for the financial year 2021-22 better indicative
comparing with previous financial year due to increase in profitability.

S.No Type of Ratio Parameter 2021-22 2020-21 % Remarks
variance
i H st

1 | Debtors Turnover Ratio Times 16.49 7.49 120.06 SRR n Tradg recepit as on 31% March 2022 as
compared in previous year

2 | Inventory Turnover Times 596 459 2971 Incrgase in Turnover resulting in decreasing inventory
holding time

3 | Interest Coverage Ratio Times 26.97 5.82 363.40 | Increase in profit

4 | current Ratio Times 306 220 39.00 Higher efﬂuer)cy on worklng capital mprovement has
resulted in an improvement in the ratio

5 | Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.07 0.04 74.38 | Reduction / repayment in term loan

6 | Operating Profit Margin (%) % 11.95 10.62 12.52 | Increase in profit

7 | Net Profit Margin (%) % 8.29 6.16 34.71 | Increase in profit

DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NETWORTH AS COMPARED TO IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS
FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION THEROF

Return on net worth is increased by 7.36% due to significant increase in profit as explained in the
Directors’ Report.

MEDIUM TERM AND LONG TERM STRATEGIES
Striving to improve quality continuously keeping in pace with technological developments.

Giving priority to the requirement of customers, creating new business opportunities and to focus on value

maximisation.
By Order of the Board
Coimbat SV ALAGAPPAN
ZEI“ME’ 026022 CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
. DIN 00002450
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To

The Members of

Shiva Mills Limited

(CIN: L17111TZ2015PLC022007)

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Shiva Mills Limited (‘the company’),
for the year ended on 31%t*March, 2022 as referred in Regulation 15(2) of the Securities Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. My examination
was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Listing Regulations. It
is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me and based on
the representations made by the Directors and the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

R Dhanasekaran
Company Secretary in Practice
FCS 7070/ CP 7745

Coimbatore ICSI UDIN: FO07070D000383041

25 May, 2022

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT
The Members of
Shiva Mills Limited

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, | declare that the Board of Directors
and members of senior management have affirmed the compliance with the code of conduct during the
financial year ended 31.3.2022

By Order of the Board

SV ALAGAPPAN

Coimbatore CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
25™ May, 2022 DIN 00002450
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Shiva Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shiva Mills Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022, its profit, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements,
or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit, in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
auditwork and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) (A Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

A <

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

—h

Withrespecttothe adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report in

“Annexure 2”.

(B)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

0] The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 24 on Contingent Liabilities to the financial statements;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise.

(i)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv)

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sourcesorkind of funds) bythe Companyto orinany otherperson(s) orentity(ies),including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) & (b) above
contain any material misstatement.



SHIVA MILLS LIMITED i

V)

a. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with Section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013

b. As stated in Note 44 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section
123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

(C)  Withrespecttothe othermattertobeincludedinthe Auditor's Reportinaccordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act.

For VKS Aiyer & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 000066S

V S Srinivasan

Partner
Coimbatore Membership No.013729
25% May, 2022 UDIN: 22013729AJXDAW5869
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Shiva Mills Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022]

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b)  The Company has a regular program of verification of property, plant and equipment, by which all
the property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In
accordance with the programme certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the
year. This periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)  Based on our examination of the title deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties, disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company

as at the balance sheet date except the following :

Gross Block and

Reason for not being

under Investment in
Property

Land/ Building Totaloumher oLoassholds Net block held in the name of the
of cases Freehold ason
March 31,2022 Company

Land at Velvarkottai 46 documents | Freehold Rs.167.98 lakhs The title deeds are in the name of
&Varapatti, Vadavalli, Shiva Texyarn limited from which the
Dhanakkarkulam business undertaking was demerged
(Occupied by Spinning under SeCtion 230 tc? 232 of the

A i ) Companies Act, 2013 vide NCLT order
Division and windmill) dt. 23.08.2017.
Undivided share of 2 documents | Freehold Gross Block: The title deeds are in the name of
land and Building at Rs.118.70 Lakhs | Shiva Texyarn limited from which the
Coimbatore and Land Net Block:: business undertaking was demerged
at Varapatti Classified Rs.102.70 Lakhs | under Section 230 to 232 of the

Companies Act, 2013 vide NCLT order
dt. 23.08.2017.
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(d  The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
during the year.

()  No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31,2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns /
statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been
observed.

iii. Reporting on investments made in companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and
granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

(@  The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee,
or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a)
of the Order are not applicable.

(b)  In our opinion, the investments made during the year are prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

()  The Company has not granted any loans during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)
(), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.  The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by
the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.  a) Inrespect of statutory dues, in our opinion, the company has been regularin depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it with the appropriate authorities.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xii.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

b) The company does not have any d isputed statutory dues, hence reporting under clause vii (b) is not
applicable

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed
as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

() To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause 3(viii)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Orderis not applicable.

b. During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(© There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.
The Companyis nota Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Orderis not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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XiVv.
a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business
b. We have considered, the internal audit reports issued till date for the period under audit.
XV. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
XVi.

a. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulation made by RBI and hence reporting under
clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, (Asset Liability Maturity (ALM) pattern) other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit reportindicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xx.  There is no unspent amount under section 135(5) of the Companies Act,2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, Clause 3(xx)(a) & 3 (XX)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For VKS Aiyer& Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 000066S

V S Srinivasan

Partner
Coimbatore Membership No:013729
25" May, 2022 UDIN:22013729AJXDAW5869
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Inde-
pendent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Shiva Mills Limited on the financial state-
ments for the year ended 31-03-2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Shiva Mills Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control statedin the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria of internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAL

For VKS Aiyer& Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 000066S

V S Srinivasan

Partner
Place: Coimbatore Membership No:013729
Date : 25" May, 2022 UDIN:22013729AJXDAW5869
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 T in Lakhs
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 2A 6,455.45 7,028.97
(b) Right of Use Asset 2B 0.85 3.57
(c) Intangible assets 2C 0.88 1.44
(d) Investment property 3 102.70 4.94
(e) Financial Assets
() Investments 4 42.03 0.03
(f) Other non-current assets 5 99.03 122.51
Total Non - Current Assets 6,700.94 7,161.46
2 Current assets
(@) Inventories 6 4,456.29 2,690.33
(b) Financial Assets 7
() Trade receivables 71 1,523.80 1,059.35
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 184.03 37717
(iii) Other Bank balances 7.2(ii) 10.75 8.70
(iv) Other Financial Assets 73 13.21 5.40
(c) Other Current assets 8 319.94 166.35
Total Current Assets 6,508.02 4,307.30
Total Assets (1+2) 13,208.96 11,468.76
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 9 864.18 864.18
(b) Other Equity 10 9,908.13 8,208.49
Total equity 10,772.31 9,072.67
Liabilities
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 11
() Borrowings 1.1 - 81.00
(b) Lease Liability 11.2 1.86 4.64
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 12 309.34 355.01
(d) Other Non-current liabilities 13 0.81 0.82
Total Non - Current Liabilities 312.01 441.47
3 Current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities 14
() Borrowings 141 790.81 297.20
(i) Trade payables 142
(a) Total outstanding due of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.71 91.72
(b) Total outstanding due of creditors other than
Micro and Small Enterprises 196.31 629.84
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 143 209.24 205.76
(b) Provisions 15 61.46 37.40
(c) Other current liabilities 16 851.11 692.70
Total Current Liabilities 2,124.64 1,954.62
Total Equity and Liabilities (1+2+3) 13,208.96 11,468.76
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying 1-44
notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For VKS AIYER & Co SV ALAGAPPAN ALALITHA

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000066S

Joint Managing Director
DIN: 00003688

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00002450

V'S SRINIVASAN M SHANMUGAM

Partner . Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 013729

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 25" May, 2022

M SHYAMALA
Company Secretary
ACS No. 24464
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 % in Lakhs
PARTICULARS Note No. ;ﬁa(;;gggg ;ﬁa(;;;g;‘:
| Revenue from operations 17 21,294.04 13,895.94
Il Other Income 18 68.09 25.41
. Total Income (I +1I) 21,362.13 13,921.35
IV EXPENSES
(@) Cost of materials consumed 19 14,242.02 8,681.81
(b) Changesin Inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock in trade 20 (181.16) 380.96
(c) Employee benefits expense 21 1,961.48 1,404.02
(d) Finance costs 22 94.35 253.68
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2D 571.07 568.27
(f) Other expenses 23 2,223.96 1,410.93
Total Expenses (V) 18,911.72 12,699.67
V  Profit before tax (Ill - IV) 2,450.41 1,221.68
VI Tax Expense
(1) Current tax 30C 705.70 373.27
(2) Deferred tax (52.47) (7.00)
(3) Prioryear tax 31.32 -
Total tax expense 684.55 366.27
VIl  Profit for the year (V - VI) 1,765.86 855.41
VIII Other comprehensive income 20.21 (16.07)
A () Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation /asset 27.01 (16.13)
(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - 0.06
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (6.80) -
B Itemsthat may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
IX  Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII) 1,786.07 839.34
X Earnings per equity share(Face value of ¥ 10 Per share):
Basic & Diluted (in %) 29 20.43 9.90
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying 1-44
notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For VKS AIYER & Co SV ALAGAPPAN ALALITHA
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Firm Registration No.0000665 DIN: 00002450 DIN: 00003688
‘P’ait::r'N'VASAN M SHANMUGAM M SHYAMALA
Membership No. 013729 Chief Financial Officer CoArEpSaQﬁ Sze4c;e6t4ary

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 25" May, 2022



d

SHIVA MILLS LIMITED

J.
\;

Firm Registration No.000066S

V'S SRINIVASAN
Partner
Membership No. 013729

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 25" May, 2022

DIN: 00002450

M SHANMUGAM
Chief Financial Officer

ol | ‘. A
=
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
% in Lakhs
(a) Equity share capital
As at April 1,2021 864.18
As at March 31,2022 864.18
(b) Other Equity  in Lakhs
Remea?ﬂ‘ements
General Retained earnings defin?ed bgnefit Total other
PARTICULARS Reserve (defecit) liabilities / equity
(assets) net of
tax
Balance at the April 01, 2020 5,346.54 1,978.17 44.44 7,369.15
Add :Profit for the year 855.41 855.41
Add/Less:Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability/asset, net of taxes 0.06 (16.13) (16.07)
Balance at the March 31, 2021 5,346.54 2,833.64 28.31 8,208.49
Balance at the April 01, 2021 5,346.54 2,833.64 28.31 8,208.49
Add :Profit for the year 1,765.85 1,765.85
Less : Dividend on equity shares for the year 2020-21 (86.42) (86.42)
(% 1 pershare)
Add/Less:Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability/asset, net of taxes 20.21 20.21
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,346.54 4,513.07 48.52 9,908.13
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying 1-44
notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For VKS AIYER & Co SV ALAGAPPAN A LALITHA
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director
DIN: 00003688

M SHYAMALA
Company Secretary
ACS No. 24464
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Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31,2022
% in Lakhs
PARTICULARS Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 2,450.41 1,221.68
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 571.07 568.27
Finance costs 94.35 253.68
Interest income (6.00) (3.26)
Rental income (5.54) 8.11)
Bad Debt Written off 11.27
Other Adjustments 18.87
Profit on Sales of Investments = (0.06)
Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss - (0.46)
684.02 810.06
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 3,134.43 2,031.74
Changes in working capital:
Financial Assets
Trade receivables (475.71) 1,590.79
Other financial assets (7.80) (3.94)
Non-financial assets
Inventories (1,765.96) 668.52
Other assets (122.00) 112.27
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Financial liabilities
Trade payables (509.54) 2.94
Other financial liabilities 3.48 (25.87)
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions (68.73) 2.30
Other liabilities 158.40 227.92
(2,787.86) 2,574.93
Cash generated from operations 346.57 4,606.67
Net income tax (paid) / refunded (656.74) (348.48)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (310.17) 4,258.19
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property plant and equipment,
including capital advances (92.02) (17.49)
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments (42.00) 3.16
Interest received 6.00 3.26
Rent received 5.54 8.11
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (122.48) (2.96)
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Statement of Cash Flow (Contd...) % in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of non-current borrowings (81.00) (108.00)

Increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings 493.60 (3,559.18)

Dividend and Distribution Tax Paid (86.42)

Repayment of Lease Liability (2.78) (1.94)

Finance costs paid (81.84) (242.68)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 241.56 (3.911.80)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(A+B+C) (191.09) 343.43

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 385.87 41.98

Add / (Less): Effect of exchange differences on restatement of

foreign currency cash and cash equivalents - 0.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 194.78 385.87
Items not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Refer Note No 7.2(ii) (10.75) (8.70)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 184.03 37717

Changes in Liability arising from financing activities, disclosing changes arising from Cash and Non Cash Flow:
As on 31-03-2022

Non Current
Borrowings Current e
Particulars (including Borrowings Lease Liability
current
maturities)
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2021 189.00 189.20 4.64
Cash Flows (Net) - Proceeds / (Repayment) (108.00) 520.61 (2.78)
Closing Balance as at 31st March 2022 81.00 709.81 1.86
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2020 298.49 3,748.38 6.59
Cash Flows (Net) - Proceeds / (Repayment) (109.49) (3,559.18) (1.94)
Closing Balance as at 31st March 2021 189.00 189.20 4.65
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying 1-44
notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For VKS AIYER & Co SV ALAGAPPAN ALALITHA
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Firm Registration No.0000665 DIN: 00002450 DIN: 00003688
V'S SRINIVASAN M SHANMUGAM M SHYAMALA
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. 013729 ACS No. 24464

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 25" May, 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

General Information:
Shiva Mills Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited Company with its registered office at 252 Mettupalayam Road, Coimbatore
and factory at Dindigul, Tamil Nadu, India. The Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock
Exchange (NSE). The Companyisengaged in the manufacturer of cottonyarn.

The Company's financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on
25" May, 2022.

1.1 Significant AccountingPolicies
This significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below.
These policieshave been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
1.2 Basisofaccountingand preparation of financial statements
(i) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statement have also been prepared in accordance with
therelevant presentationrequirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Basisof preparation
Thefinancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
(@) certainfinancialassetsand liabilities thatare measured at fairvalue and
(b) definedbenefitplans—planassets measured at fairvalue
(c) Rightofuse assetswhich are recognized at the present value of lease payments that are outstanding and adjusted
forinitial costincurred."
1.3 Segmentreporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The Management and board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions. The board of directors has been identified as being the chief operating decision
maker.

1.4 Use of estimates
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the Management and directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparentfromothersources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
thatare consideredto berelevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period inwhich the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, orin the period of the revision
and future periodsif the revision affects both currentand future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilitieswithin the next financial year.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This assessment may
resultin changeinthe depreciation expensein future periods.

b. Employee Benefits
The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions
aboutdiscountrates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pensionincreases. Due
tothelong-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.
1.5 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, Packing materials, Stores and Spares and
consumables are valued at Cost on weighed average cost basis. Value of finished goods and work-in-progress are determined on
weighted average cost basisandinclude appropriate share of overheads.

1.6 Cashandcashequivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks other than deposits pledged with government
authoritiesand margin money deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank borrowings are generally
considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an
entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. A characteristic of such
bankingarrangementsis that the bank balance often fluctuates from being positive to overdrawn.

1.7 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investingand financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

1.8 Taxes on income

a) Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the

statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
nevertaxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the
year using applicable tax rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses
and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any,
relatedtolncometaxisincludedin OtherIncome.
b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initialrecognition of assetsand liabilitiesina transaction that affects neitherthe taxable profit northe accounting profit.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

c)

19

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that itis no
longerprobable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allowall or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferredtaxliabilitiesand assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
orthe asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the mannerin which
the Company expects, atthe end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carryingamount of itsassets and liabilities.

Currentand deferred tax fortheyear

Currentand deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognisedin
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensiveincome ordirectly in equity respectively.

Property plantand equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of
decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plantand equipment have been putinto operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and
overhaul expenditureis capitalised as the activities undertakenimproves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

Anitem of property, plantand equipmentis derecognized upon disposal orwhen no future economic benefitsare expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Property, plantand equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply oradministrative purposes, are stated in
the balance sheetat costlessaccumulated depreciationand accumulatedimpairmentlosses, if any.

Capital work-in-progress:

Projects under which assets are not ready for theirintended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising
directcostandrelatedincidental expenses.

Depreciation commenceswhenthe assets are ready for theirintended use. Depreciable amount forassetsis the cost of an asset, or
otheramount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line
method as perthe usefullife prescribedin Schedule Il to the Companies Act,2013.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Class of Assets Useful Lives
Factory Buildings 30 Years
Non-Factory Buildings, 60 Years
Plant and Machinery & Equipment’s (Continuous process plant for which no special rate has been

prescribed) 25 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years
Lab Equipments 10 years
Motor Vehicles 8 Years
Motor Vehicles (Second Hand) 4 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years
Office Equipment’s 5Years
Computer 3 Years
Fences, wells, tube wells 3 Years

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the changeisaccountedforasachangeinaccountingestimate on a prospective basis.

Intangible Assets and Amortisation:
Anintangible assetisanidentifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are recognised only if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise andthe cost of the asset can be measuredreliably.

Computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Operating
softwareis capitalised and amortised alongwith the related fixed asset.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
arereviewedatthe end of eachreporting period, with the effect of any changesin estimate beingaccounted for on a prospective basis.

The Company has used the following useful lives to amortiseitsintangible assets:

Class of Assets Useful Lives
Computer Software 6
Investment Property

Investment property is a property, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for usein the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or sale in the ordinarycourse of business. Investment properties (if any), are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
Statement of profit and loss as incurred. The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Investment

Property:
Class of Assets Useful Lives
Buildings 60 years
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.10 Leases

a) TheCompanyasalessee:

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Buildings.The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of anidentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whethera contract conveys theright to
controlthe use ofanidentified asset, the Company assesseswhether:

() the contractinvolves the use of an identified asset(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use
ofthe assetthrough the periodofthe lease and(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (‘ROU”) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term
leases) and low value leases. For these short termand low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on astraightline basis overthe term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost lessaccumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.Right-of-
use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
usefullife of the underlyingasset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carryingamount toreflect the lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an
indexorrate usedto determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified
asfinancing cash flows.

b) TheCompanyasalessor:

Leasesforwhichthe companyisa lessoris classified as afinance or operating lease. Wherever the terms of the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and ownership to the lessee, the contact is classified as finance lease. All other leases are classified
asoperatinglease. The Application of INDAS 116 did not have any implicationasaLessor.

1.11 Revenuerecognition

a) Saleofgoods

Revenue from customers is recognised when the Company statisfies performance obligation when control of goods is
transferred to the customerwhichisusally on despatch ordelivery. Revenue is measured based on transaction price adjusted
forvolume based price discount, price concessionsand net off returns.

b) Saleofservices

The Company recognises revenue when the significant terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have been
delivered and the collectability isreasonably assured.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
c) Otheroperatingrevenue
Other operating revenue comprising of income from ancillary activities incidental to the operations of the Company and is
recognisedwhentherighttoreceive theincomeisestablished.

1.12 Otherincome

a) Interest
Interestincome from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interestincome is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstandingandatthe effective interestrate applicable.

b) Dividend
Dividend Income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

1.13 Employee benefits
Employee benefitsinclude provident fund, employee state insurance, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

a) Retirementbenefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution Retirement Benefit Plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitlingthemto the contributions.

For defined benefit Retirement Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changesto the asset ceiling (ifapplicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding
netinterest),isreflectedinthe balance sheetwith acharge or credit recognisedin other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Netinterestis calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability orasset.

b) Defined benefitcostsare categorised asfollows:
-service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, aswell as gainsand losses on curtailments and settlements);
-netinterestexpenseorincome;and
-remeasurement
For defined benefit plan, in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
past service cost, asreduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme. The gratuity
fundis maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits
expenses’. Curtailment gainsandlossesare accounted foras past service costs.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
availableinthe form of refunds fromthe plansorreductionsin future contributionsto the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefitandwhen the entity recognisesany related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long term employee benefits
Aliability isrecognised for benefitsaccruing to employeesinrespect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expectedtobe paidinexchange fortherelated service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

1.14 Foreigncurrencytransactionsandtranslations

() Functionaland presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee (INR), whichisthe Company's functionaland presentation currency.

(i) Transactionsandbalances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profitorloss.

Foreignexchange differencesregarded asan adjustmentto borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profitand loss,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net
basiswithin other gains/(losses).

1.15 Borrowings and Borrowing cost
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
theincome statement overthe period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
afterthereportingdate.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time asthe assetsare substantially ready for theirintended use orsale.

Interestincome earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assetsis
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit
andlossinthe periodinwhichtheyareincurred.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.16 Earningspershare
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (Loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
forthe effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares

117 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable
obligation. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on
the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
andadjustedtoreflectthe current best estimates."

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the Notes.

1.18 Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchase or sales of
financial assets thatrequire delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or conventioninthe market place
(regular way trade) are recognised on trade date. While, financial liabilities like loans and borrowings and payables are
recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs."

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following
categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL) and
financial liabilitiesatamortised cost or FVTPL.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held. Management
determinesthe classification of its financialinstruments atinitial recognition.

a) Non-derivative financial assets
(i) Financialassetsatamortised cost
Afinancial asset shallbe measured atamortised costif both of the following conditions are met:

(@ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cashflowsand

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principalandinterest (SPPI) on the principalamount outstanding.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are
presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried atamortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, orwhere appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carryingamountoninitial recognition.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
employee and otheradvancesandeligible currentand non-current assets.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interestincomeisrecognisedin profitorlossandisincludedinthe “OtherIncome” lineitem.

(ii) EquityinstrumentsatFVTOCI
All equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for trading is classified as FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changesin the fair value in OCI.
The Company makes such election onaninstrument-by-instrument basis.

Ifthe Company decidesto classify an equity instrumentasat FVTOCI, then all fairvalue changes on the instrument, excluding
dividendarerecognisedin OClwhichisnot subsequently recycledto statement of profitandloss.

(iii) FinancialassetsatFVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortised costoras FVTOCI, is classifiedas FVTPL

In addition the Company may elect to designate the financial asset, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOClI criteria,
asFVTPLifdoing so eliminates orsignificantly reduces ameasurementorrecognitioninconsistency.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and isincluded in the ‘Otherincome’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investmentand theamountof dividend can be measuredreliably.

(iv) Derecognitionoffinancial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise beenrecognisedin
profitorlossondisposal of that financial asset.
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Onderecognition of afinancial asset other thaninits entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of
atransferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carryingamount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had
beenrecognisedin other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
thatisnolongerrecognised on the basis of the relative fairvalues of those parts.

b) Non-derivative financial liabilities
(i) Financialliabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value,and subsequently carried atamortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(ii) Financialliabilitiesat FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in
the ‘Finance costs’ lineitem. The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
andthe consideration paid and payableisrecognisedin Statement of Profitand Loss.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities
thatare measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised
in profitorloss.

(iii) Derecognition of non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company derecognisesfinancial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognisedin profitorloss.

1.19 Impairment
a) Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivable.The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognisesimpairmentloss allowance based onlifetime ECLsateach reporting date, right fromitsinitial recognition.
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Forrecognition ofimpairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there
hasbeenasignificantincreasein the creditrisk since initial recognition. If credit risk has notincreased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
sinceinitialrecognition, then the entity reverts torecognisingimpairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12-
monthsafterthereporting date.

ECListhe difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive(i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash
flows, an entityisrequired to consider:

)] Allcontractual terms of the financialinstrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
entity isrequired to use the remaining contractual term of the financialinstrument.

(i)  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. As
practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable.
The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and
changesinforward-looking estimatesare analysed.

ECLimpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the yearis recognised asincome/expense in the statement of
profitandloss. The balance sheet presentation forvarious financialinstrumentsis described below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until
the asset meetswrite off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairmentallowance from the gross carryingamount.

b) Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of
non financial assetsisimpaired. [fany suchindication exists, the Company estimates the amount ofimpairment loss.

Animpairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are
recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the
previously recognisedimpairmentlossisreversed through profit orloss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less coststo sell. Inassessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generatingunit”).
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1.20

1.21

1.22

Governmentgrants

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:(i) the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to them; and(ii) the grant will be received."

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deductedin
reporting the related expense. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income over the expected useful life of
theasset.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a
non-monetary asset is given free of cost it is recognised at a fair value. When loan or similar assistance are provided by
government or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this
favourable interestisrecognized as governmentrate. The loan orassistance isinitially recognized and measured at fair value
and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds
received.

Operatingcycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as currentand non-current.

Recentaccounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind AS16—Property Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1,2022. The Company has evaluated the amendmentand thereis noimpact onits financial statements

Ind AS37-Provisions,Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’.Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for
adoption of thisamendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,2022, although early adoption is permitted. The
Company hasevaluatedtheamendmentand theimpactisnot expected to be material.
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(i)  Detailsofimmovable propertiesnotheldinthe name of Company:
Particulars Total number Leasehold NGerto lflso?:::)ac: cf(n Reason for r;?tc(l:;: ng heldin name
of cases / Freehold March 31,2022 pany
Land at Velvarkottai &Varapatti, 46 Documents Freehold Rs.167.98 lakhs | Thetitle deedsareinthe name of
Vadavalli, Dhanakkarkulam Shiva Texyarn limited from which
(Occupied by Spinning Division the business undertaking was
and windmill) demerged under Section 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013
vide NCLT orderdt.23.08.2017.
2B. Right of use Asset
Description of Assets T in Lakhs
l. Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at April 1, 2020 8.16
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31,2021 8.16
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31,2022 8.16
Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2020 1.86
Amortisation expense for the year 2.73
Balance as at March 31,2021 4.59
Amortisation expense for the year 2.72
Balance as at March 31,2022 7.31
Net block (I-11)
Net Carrying Value as at March 31,2021 3.57
Net Carrying Value as at March 31,2022 0.85

Note
In the statement of profit and loss for the current year, operating lease expenses is recognised as depreciation expense for the
right-of-use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of
12%hasbeenappliedtolease liabilitiesrecognisedin the balance sheet at the date of initial application.
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2C. Intangible Assets
Description of Assets Computer Software
l. Gross Carrying amounts Value
Balance as at April 1,2020 2.73
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31,2021 2.73
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31,2022 2.73
Il. Accumulated Amortisation and impairment -
Balance as at April 1, 2020 0.93
Amortisation expense for the year 0.36
Balance as at March 31,2021 1.29
Amortisation expense for the year 0.56
Balance as at March 31,2022 1.85
Net block (I-1I)
Net Carrying Value as at March 31,2021 1.44
Net Carrying Value as at March 31,2022 0.88
2D. Depreciation and Amortisation
. For the year For the year
Particulars Note No. ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021
Property plant and equipment 2A 566.20 565.19
Right -of-use Asset 2B 2.72 2.73
Amortisation - Intangibles 2C 0.56 0.36
Investment property 3 1.59
Total depreciation 571.07 568.27
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Non-current assets

3. Investment Property

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Land

Building* Total

Gross Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2020
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2021
Reclassification from PPE
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31st March, 2020
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2021
Reclassification from PPE
Additions

Disposals

As at 31st March, 2022
Net Carrying Value

As at 31st March, 2021
As at 31st March, 2022

4.94

4.94
11.68

- 4.94

494

102.08 113.76

16.62

102.08 118.70

14.41 14.41
1.59 1.59

16.00 16.00

4.94
16.62

4.94

86.08 102.70

*The Company has identified Land and Building at Coimbatore to be in the nature of investment property and accordingly reclassified from Property, Plant

and equipment to Investment in Property
Fair value of investment property :

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Land 61.34 48.49
Building 56.84 -

The fair value of the Investment property is based on the guideline value of the property based on Tamilnadu Registry. The
Management believes that the fair value of the investment property as at the balance sheet would not be significantly different from

guidelinevalue.

Details of immovable properties not held in the name of Company:

Building at Coimbatore and
Land at Varapatti

Classified under Investment
in Property

Total b L hold Gross Block & Reason for not
Particulars ° af number /eFasehold Net block as on being held in name
ofcases reeno March 31, 2022 of company
Undivided share of land and 2 documents Freehold Gross Block The title deeds are in the name of

:Rs.118.70Lakhs

Net Block:
Rs.102.70 Lakhs

Shiva Texyarn limited from which
the business undertaking was
demerged under Section 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013
vide NCLT orderdt.23.08.2017.
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T in Lakhs
Financial Assets
4. Investments
Particulars Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
I. Quoted Investments (fully paid) - -
Il. Unquoted Investments (fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments - Others
a. 3,00,000 Equity shares of Nellai Renewables Private Limited of Rs.10 Each 30.00 -
b. Advance for Purchase of Equity shares of Nellai Renewables Private Limited-
1,20,000 Shares of Rs.10 Each 12.00 -
c. Government Securities 0.03 0.03
Total Unquoted Investments 42.03 0.03
Total Investments 42.03 0.03
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 42.03 0.03
Aggregate market value of unquoted investments 42.03 0.03
5. Other Non Current Assets
. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Capital Advances 4.30 5.46
Security Deposit paid 91.07 86.10
Other Rental advance 3.41 3.54
Other Advance 0.25 0.25
Income Tax (Net of Provision) - 27.16
Total 99.03 122.51
6. Inventories
Particul As at As at
articeis 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Raw Materials 3,746.77 2,170.48
Work-in-progress (Refer note below) 262.45 269.91
Finished Goods 233.46 102.39
Waste Cotton 81.07 30.39
Stores and Spares 132.54 11716
Total 4,456.29 2,690.33
Note
. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Work in Progress
Cotton 241.45 248.32
Yarn 21.00 21.59
Total 262.45 269.91
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() For method of valuation of inventories, refer significant Accounting Policy No 1.5
(i) Inventories with the above mentioned carrying amount have been pledged as security against certain bank borrowings of the

Company (Refer note 14.1)
(iii) Cost of inventory recognised as an expense :

T in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Cost of materials consumed 14,242.02 8,681.81
Consumption of Stores & Spare parts 170.30 120.43
7. Financial Assets
7.1 Trade receivables
Particul As at As at
artlculars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(@) Considered good - Unsecured 1,526.51 1,030.61
(b) Creditimpaired 2.61 28.74
1,529.12 1,059.35
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (Refer Note below) 532 -
Total 1,523.80 1,059.35
Note Movementin allowancesfor creditlosses of receivableisasbelow:
. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Opening balance
Add : Provision made during the year 5.32 -
Less: Reversed during the year -
Closing balance 5.32 -
7.1 (i) Ageing schedule of trade receivables is as below:
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following period from the date of invoice
Particulars Less than | 6 months R R More than
6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
() Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 1,526.51 1,526.51
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase
in credit risk 2.61 2.61
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
Sub Total 1,526.51 - - 2.61 - 1,529.12
Less : Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 5.32
Total 1,523.80
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As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following period from the date of invoice
Particulars Less than 6 months R R More than
6 months -1 year 1-2years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
() Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 1,030.61 24.37 1,054.98
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk 437 4.37
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Total 1,030.61 24.37 4.37 - - 1,059.35

7.1 (ii) The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is

based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are

analysed. Based on such estimates, no provision for creditrisk has been made.

7.1. (iii) Trade receivables have been given as primary security for Working Capital Loans (Refer note 14.1)

7.2 (i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
. As at As at
Particutsss 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(a) Cash on hand 0.24 0.73
(b) Balances with banks :
Current accounts 183.79 376.44
Total 184.03 377.17
7.2 (ii) Other Bank Balances
Particulars Asat As at
u 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Earmarked balances
In Unclaimed dividend accounts 10.75 8.70
10.75 8.70

Total
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7.3 Other financial assets
Particulars Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Unsecured, considered good
Employee Advance 0.73 5.40
Banked Energy Units 12.48
Total 13.21 5.40
8. Other Current Assets
Particulars 31.3‘;;:)22 31"3;;;21
Unsecured and considered good
GST - Input tax credit receivable 56.20 10.72
Prepayment 38.75 73.41
Gratuity 16.78 -
Advance to Suppliers 208.21 82.22
Total 319.94 166.35

9. Equity Share Capital

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Particulars Numbers | =, .kns | NUMDErs | 2 ) kns
of Shares of Shares

(a) Authorised:
Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares ofZ 10/- each 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 | 1,50,00,000| 1,500.00
Total 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 | 1,50,00,000| 1,500.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up:
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 86,41,808 864.18 86,41,808 864.18
Total 86,41,808 864.18 86,41,808 864.18

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Particulars Numbers | =, .kns | Numbers | =) uns
of Shares of Shares
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
At the beginning of the year 86,41,808 864.18 86,41,808 864.18
Add: Issued during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 86,41,808 864.18 86,41,808 864.18
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(ii) Terms / rights attached to the Equity Shares:

i

)
4

3

T in Lakhs

The Company has issued only one class of equity share having a face value of ¥ 10/- per share. The holder of each equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to all preferential creditors and other creditors, in the order of priority. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders. The company declares and pays dividend in
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by Board of Directors is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General

Meeting.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the share capital:

Equity Shares
As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Particulars Numbers of | , ) Numbers of | .
Shares held % of holding Shares held % of holding
Vedanayagam Hospital (P) Limited - 42,03,546 48.64%
Annamallai Retreading Company Private Limited 62,356,976 7217% 20,33,430 23.53%

(iv) 86,41,808 shares were alloted consequent to ascheme of demerger approved by NCLT vide orderded dated 23.08.2017

(v) Shares held by promoters

Numbersof | , Numbers of | % change
Promoter name Shares asat | - fht:rt:: Shares asat| - (;fht:rt:: during
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 the year
1 SV Alagappan 21,780 0.25% 21,780 0.25% 0.00%
2 A Shenbagam 3,480 0.04% 3,480 0.04% 0.00%
3 A Lalitha 2,13,680 2.47% 540 0.01% 2.46%
4 SV Kandasami—HUF - 0.00% 7,680 0.09% ()0.09%
5 SV Kandasami - 0.00% | 2,03,300 2.35% (12.35%
6 K Leelavathi - 0.00% 1,800 0.02% (1)0.02%
7 S K Sundararaman 0.00% 360 0.00% 0.00%
8 Annamallai Retreading Company (P) Ltd 62,356,976 7217% | 20,33,430 23.53% 48.64%
9  Vedanayagam Hospital (P) Ltd 42,03,546 48.64% | (-)48.64%
Total 64,75,916 7494% | 64,75,916 74.94%
(vi) Shares held by holding Company:
Name of the shareholder %ofShares No.ofShares
Annamallai Retreading Company (P) Ltd 7217% 62,36,976
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10. Other Equity
Particul As at As at
articutars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(a) General Reserve 5,346.54 5,346.54
(b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance 2,833.64 1,978.17
Add : Profit for the year 1,765.85 855.47
Less: Dividend Paid on Equity Shares (86.42) -
Closing balance 4,513.07 2,833.64
(c) Other comprehensive income
Opening 28.31 44.44
Addition/(Deletion) during the year 20.21 (16.13)
Closing balance 48.52 28.31
Total other equity 9,908.13 8,208.49
Non-current Liabilities
11. Financial Liabilities
11.1 Borrowings
. As at As at
Farticulags 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Term Loans - Secured(Refer Note below)
From banks - 81.00
Total - 81.00
Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of secured term loans:
. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
ICICI Bank Limited 81.00 189.00
Less: Current Maturities of long term debt (81.00) (108.00)
- 81.00

Security: First charge on entire movables and immovable fixed assets of the spinning unit of the Company. Repayable in 20 equal
quarterly instalments commencing from February 2018. Term Loan carriesInterestrate @ 10.25%

11.2 Lease Liability

. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Lease liability 1.86 4.64
Total 1.86 4.64
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12. Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Particulars As at Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(@) Deferred tax liability:
Opening balance 358.50 366.94
Add: Additions during the year 6.80
Less: Reversed during the year 53.99 8.44
Closing balance 311.31 358.50
(b) Deferred tax asset:
Opening balance 3.49 4.93
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Reversed during the year 1.52 1.44
Closing balance 1.97 3.49
Deferred tax liability (Net) (a)-(b) 309.34 355.01
13. Other Non- current liabilities
Particulars Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Income received in advance 0.81 0.82
Total 0.81 0.82
Current Liabilities
14. Financial Liabilities
14.1 Borrowings
Particulars As at Asat
3 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(a) Working capital loan from banks (Secured) (Refer Note 1 below) 709.81 189.20
Current Maturities of long term borrowings 81.00 108.00
Total 790.81 297.20
Note 1
Particulars As at Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
A) Cash Credit
(i) ICICI Bank Limited 55.09 -
(i) Indian Overseas Bank 94.05 13.19
(iii) Bank of Baroda 160.67 -
(iv) Canara Bank - 176.01
B) Short Term working capital loan with ICICI Bank Limited 400.00 -
709.81 189.20
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T in Lakhs

Name of the Bankers

Security

@) ICICI Bank Ltd
(ii) Indian Overseas Bank
(iii) Bank of Baroda

(iv) Canara Bank

1. First pari-pasu charge on the current assets of

the spinning Unitof the Company.

2. Second Charge pari pasu charge on the Fixed

assets ofthe spinning unit of the Company

Q
~

Working Capital loan carry interest ranging from 7.50% to 11.30%

b) Inrespect of borrowings made during the year, the charge on the assets given as security to the lender have been
created on time in compliance with the regulatory requirements

c) The quarterly returns or statements comprising of (stock statements, book debt statements, statements on ageing
analysis of the debtors/other receivables, and other stipulated financial information) filed by the Company with banks
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no material

discrepancies have been observed.

14.2 Trade payables

. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(a) Total outstanding due of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.71 91.72
(b) Total outstanding due of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 196.31 629.84
Total 212.02 721.56

Ageing schedule of trade payable is as below

As at 31.03.2022

Outstanding for following period from the due date of payment

(i)  Micro and Small Enterprises 15.71 - 15.71
(i) Others 196.31 - 196.31
(i) Disputed dues - Micro and Small Enterprises - -
(iv)  Disputed dues - Others - -
Total Trade Payables 212.02 - - - 212.02
As at 31.03.2021
Outstanding for following period from the due date of payment
Particulars I(-Se;irt\'t‘ﬁ: 1-2years | 2-3 years M;;i;?:" Total
()  Micro and Small Enterprises 91.72 - 91.72
(i) Others 629.84 - 629.84
(i) Disputed dues - Micro and Small Enterprises - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - -
Total Trade Payables 721.56 - - - 721.56
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14.3 Other financial liabilities
Particulars Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Employee Benefit Expense Payable 170.61 170.68
Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividend 10.75 8.70
Dues to related parties 2.29
Security Deposits Received 27.88 24.09
Total 209.24 205.76
15. Provisions
Particulars Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Income Tax Provision (Net off) 61.46 35.79
Provision for Gratuity 1.61
Total 61.46 37.40
16. Other Current Liabilities
. Asat As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Statutory remittances 19.04 27.05
Expenses Payable 707.09 624.49
Advance from Customers 124.98 36.60
Other payables - 4.56
Total 851.11 692.70
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17. Revenue from operations
Note For the year For the year
No. Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021
(a) Sale of Manufactured goods
a. Yarn 20,121.93 13,008.65
b. Waste Cotton 1,091.94 818.34
21,213.87 13,826.99
(b) Other operating revenues
a. Freight and Forwarding Charges Collection 80.17 66.88
b. Duty drawback and other export incentives - 2.07
80.17 68.95
Total 21,294.04 13,895.94
18. Other income
Note For the year
No. Particulars For the year ended March 31 2022 ended
March 312021
(@ Interest income
(Refer Note 1 below) 5.99 3.26
(b) Other non-operating income
(Refer Note 2 below) 59.59 22.15
(c) Profit on Sale of Cotton ( Net off Purchase)
Sale Value 179.46
Less: Purchase Cost 176.95
2.51
Total 68.09 25.41
For the year For the year
Note Particulars ended ended
No. March 312022 | March 312021
1 Interest income comprises:
Interest from Deposits 5.72 3.02
Interest from financial assets at amortised cost 0.27 0.24
Total - Interest income 5.99 3.26
2 Other non-operating income comprises:
Rental income 5.54 8.11
Sale of wind power 12.48 -
Net Gain on foreign currency transaction and translation
(other than considered as finance cost) - 0.46
Other Miscellaneous income 41.57 13.58
Other non-operating income 59.59 22.15
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19. Cost of materials consumed

T in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 312022

For the year
ended
March 312021

Opening stock

Raw Materials 2,170.48 2,546.91
Work in Progress -Cotton 248.32 171.41
Add: Purchases 15,988.39 8,382.29
Less: Sale of Cotton 176.95 -
18,230.24 11,100.6
Less: Closing stock

Raw Materials 3,746.77 2,170.48
Work in Progress -Cotton 241.45 248.32
Cost of material consumed 14,242.02 8,681.81

Material consumed comprises:
Cotton 14,242.02 8,681.81
Total 14,242.02 8,681.81

20. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade

For the year ended For the year ended

March 312022

March 312021

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 233.46 102.39
Work-in-progress-Yarn 21.00 21.59
Waste cotton 81.07 30.39
335.53 154.37

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 102.39 490.37
Work-in-progress-Yarn 21.59 14.91
Waste-cotton 30.39 30.05
154.37 535.33
Net (increase) / decrease (181.16) 380.96

21. Employee benefits expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 312022

March 312021

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,735.88 1,255.84
Contributions to provident and other funds 106.96 78.37
Staff welfare expenses 118.64 69.81
Total 1,961.48 1,404.02

22. Finance costs
Particulars Forthe yearended | Forthe year ended

March 312022

March 312021

(@) Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Borrowings 35.99 166.10
(b) Other borrowing costs 58.36 87.58
Total 94.35 253.68
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23. Other expenses

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021

Consumption of stores and spare parts 170.30 120.43
Power, fuel and water charges 854.36 569.97
Rentincluding lease rentals 2.08 2.03
Repairs and Maintenance - Building 70.29 18.88
Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery 666.26 339.01
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 28.18 17.72
Insurance 99.03 76.87
Rates and Taxes 34.84 42.87
Communication expenses 6.34 3.76
Travelling and Conveyance 9.70 6.20
Printing & Stationery 4.58 4.05
Freight and Forwarding Charges 80.21 68.44
Selling Expenses 79.45 73.79
Donation 5.02 -
Director's sitting fee 4.40 3.60
Business Promotion Expenses 4.16 2.35
Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) (refer note no. 34) 14.15 10.10
Legal and Professional charges 28.78 22.28
Payments to Auditors( Refer Note -23.1 below) 7.39 7.86
Expected Credit Loss ( refer note no. 7.1 (1)) 5.32 -
Bad Debt Written off 11.27 -
Non Moving Stock Written off 8.31 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 29.54 20.72
Total 2,223.96 1,410.93

Note 23.1 - Payments to auditors:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

March 31 2022

March 312021

Payments to auditors comprises:
For Statutory audit fees
For Tax Audit
For taxation matters
For other services
Limited Review Report
Certification Services
Others
Total

2.50 2.50
1.50 1.50
1.10 1.35
1.35 1.35
0.14 0.36
0.80 0.80
7.39 7.86
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Additional information to the financial statements
24. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Note Particular As at As at
No. articutars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
0) Contingent liabilities:
Disputed claims of TANGEDCO as part of energy supply 52.18 52.18
(i) Capital Commitments 997.92 Nil
25. Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Particulars Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
() Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
15.71 91.72

accounting year
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year
(i) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
the accounting year

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

section 23

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available withthe Management.

The Company has disclosed the suppliers who have registered themselves under "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act,2006" totheextenttheyhave confirmed.
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26. Employee benefit plans

a. Defined contribution plans - provident fund and employee state insurance

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee state insurance scheme contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying
employees. Underthe Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.
The Companyrecognised the following contributionsin the Statement of profitand loss.

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 31 2022

For the year
ended
March 312021

March 312022

Provident fund 62.81 51.09
Employee state insurance 19.17 14.27
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

March 31 2021

4.75

PF and Gratuity contribution towards key Managerial 10.59

b. Defined benefit plan-gratuity

Inaccordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (Gratuity plan).
The Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of employment, an
amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn eligible salary and the years of employment with the Company. The
Company provides the gratuity benefit through annual contributions to a fund managed by the Insurer included as part of
‘Contribution to provident and other funds’ in Note 21 Employee benefit expense. Under this plan, the settlement obligation
remainswith the Company.

Description of Risk ExposuresValuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other
regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above
gratuity benefit which are as follows:

i. Interest Rate Risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as
showninfinancial statements).

ii. Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment.

Salary Escalation Risk: The presentvalue of the defined benefit planis calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate
of plan participantsinfuture. Deviationin the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate ofincrease in
salaryusedtodetermine the presentvalue of obligation willhave abearingon the plan’sliabilty.

iv. Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The
Companyisexposedto therisk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption

v. LiquidityRisk: Thisistherisk thatthe Companyisnotable to meetthe short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due tonon-
availabilty of enough cash/cashequivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2022 by actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and
therelated current service costand past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.
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The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity scheme:

T in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 31 2022

For the year
ended
March 312021

Components of employer expense

Current and Non Current Liability portion

Current service cost 20.08 19.60
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 14.53 12.09
Admin Expenses/Taxes Paid from plan assets - -
Expected return on plan assets (14.81) (13.78)
Recognised in statement of profit and loss 19.80 17.91
Re-measurement - actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in OCI 27.01) 8.21
Total expense recognised in the Statement of total comprehensive income (7.21) 26.12
Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience (30.57) 18.03
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to Demographic assumtions changes in DBO - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes (6.16) (3.16)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (36.73) 14.87
Actual return on plan assets (greater)/less interest on plan assets 9.72 (6.66)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (27.01) 8.21
Defined Benefit Cost

Service cost 20.08 19.60
Admin Expenses/Taxes Paid from plan assets

Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (0.28) (1.70)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OClI (27.01) 8.21
Defined Benefit Cost (7.21) 26.11
Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO) during the year

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 215.22 174.27
Current service cost 20.08 19.60
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 14.53 12.09
Actuarial (gains) / losses (36.73) 14.87
Acqutions/Divestures/Transfer - -
Benefits paid (18.32) (5.60)
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 194.78 215.23
Actual contribution and benefit payments for year

Actual benefit payments 18.32 5.60
Actual contributions 11.19 0.88
Change in fair value of assets during the year

Plan assets at beginning of the year 213.61 197.89
Expected return on plan assets 14.81 13.78
Actual company contributions 11.19 0.88
Transfer Out/Divestures

Admin Expenses/Taxes Paid from plan assets

Actuarial gain / (loss) (9.72) 6.66
Benefits paid (18.32) (5.60)
Plan assets at the end of the year 211.57 213.61
Actual return on plan assets 5.09 20.44
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T in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 312022

For the year
ended
March 312021

Current and Non Current Liability portion
Current Asset/ (Liability)

Non Current Asset/ (Liability)

Net Asset/(Liability)

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)]

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Composition of the plan assets is as follows:

Insurer managed funds

Total

*Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India and composition of the
fund as at the balance sheet date was not provided by the insurer.

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets
Salary escalation

Attrition rate

16.79 (1.62)
16.79 (1.62)
194.78 215.23
211.57 213.61
16.79 (1.62)
16.79 (1.62)
100% 100%
7.50% 7.05%
7.05% 7.05%
7.00% 7.00%
5.00% 5.00%

Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd...)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the

estimated term of the obligations.

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,

would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Gratuity Plan March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Estimate value of obligation if discount rate is taken 12 higher 181.25 199.16
Estimated value of obligation if discount rate is taken 1% lower 210.48 234.02
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is taken 12 higher 209.35 232.65
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is taken 1% lower 182.06 200.12
Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is taken 126 higher 194.36 214.38
Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is taken 1% lower 195.23 216.18

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no

other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods

and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.
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Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Maturity profile, if it ensues As at

31.03.2022
Year 1 16.63
Year 2 9.06
Year 3 7.03
Year 4 11.30
Year 5 7.22
Year 6-10 years 57.65
Above 10 years 85.89

Asset Liability Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is
declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes
payment of all gratuity liability occurring during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates
the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities.
Thus, the Company is exposed to movement ininterest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should resultin a
increase in liability without correspondingincrease inthe asset).
27. Segment Reporting
(a) Primary Business Segment Information
The company's business relates to single segment only i.e, Textiles. Accordingly, this is the only reportable business

segment.

(b) Secondary Geographic Segment Information
The information relating to geographical revenue and non-current asset has been disclosed below :

i)  Revenue from Operations - based on location of the customer

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021
Within India 21,294.04 13,784.10
Outside India - 111.84
Total 21,294.04 13,895.94

ii)  Non current assets
Non-current assets other than financial instruments,deferred tax asset, post-employment benefit asset and rights

arising under insurane contracts based on location of the assets.

. As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Within India 6,700.94 7.161.46
QOutside India -
Total 6,700.94 7,161.46
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28. Related party Disclosures:
(i) List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year 2021-22 and relationship:

(@) Holding Company : Annamallai Retreading Company Private Limited
(b) Subsidiary Company  : Nil
(c) Key Management Personnel (e) Others: (Enterprise over which key management
Sri SV Alagappan, Managing Director personnel are able to exercise significant influence)
Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director Anamallais Motors Private Limited
Sri M Shanmugam, Chief Financial Officer . . . L
Smt M Shyamala, Company Secretary Shiva Automobiles Private Limited
(d) Other related parties Coimbatore Anamallais Agencies Private Limited
Sri S K Sundararaman, Non Independent Director . . .
Sri K N V Ramani, Independent Director Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
g: (S: Z?\}:g;:; r:::algsteeﬁgggtegitrgéﬁcrtor Bannari Amman Automobiles Private Limited
Sri S Marusamy, Independent Director Shiva Texyarn Limited
(ii) Related Party Transactions:
. FY 2021 -22 FY 2020-21
Name of Transactions KMP Others KMP Others
Sale of goods and services
Shiva Texyarn Limited B - 46.90
Purchase of goods and services
Anamallais Motors Private Limited 0.10 0.15
Shiva Automobiles Private Limited 8.47 2.66
Bannari Amman Automobiles Private Limited 5.05 -
Coimbatore Anamallais Agencies Private Limited 2.14 0.38
Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited 1.56 1.56
Sitting fees to Independent Directors 4.40 3.60
Remuneration
Sri SV Alagappan, Managing Director 130.00 68.00
Smt A Lalitha, Joint Managing Director 130.00 68.00
Salary
Sri M Shanmugam, Chief Financial Officer 15.31 12.68
Smt.M Shyamala, Company Secretary 12.19 10.28
Amount Outstanding as at year end
(i) Receivables - Shiva Texyarn Limited - - - 18.37
(i) Payables - Managerial Remuneration 173.02 - -
(iii) Write off / Write back - - -
29. Earnings per equity share
Particulars For the yearended| For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Profit attributable to equity shareholders ®) 1,765.86 855.41
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 86,41,808 86,41,808
Par value per equity share ) 10.00 10.00
Earning per share - Basic & Diluted ®) 20.43 9.90
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30A. Income Tax recognised:
For the year ended 31 March, 2022 For the year ended 31 March, 2021
Particulars Statement of Other Statement of Other
profit and loss | comprehensive profit and loss | comprehensive
income income
Current Tax:
In respect of current year 705.70 - 373.27
In respect of prior years 31.32 - -
Deferred Tax:
In respect of current year (52.47) - (7.00)
Income tax expense 684.55 - 366.27 -
30B. Movement in deferred tax balances
Recognised in
Particulars Opening Recognised in Other Closing
Balance profit and Loss|comprehensive Balance
income
Year ended 31.03.2022
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
Provision for Expected credit loss - 1.34 - 1.34
On disallowance under the Income Tax Act 105.67 0.63 (6.80) 99.50
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 105.67 197 (6.80) 100.84
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book balance and tax
balance of fixed assets (460.68) 50.50 - (410.18)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) (460.68) 50.50 - (410.18)
Net Deferred tax asset/(liability) (355.01) 52.47 (6.80) (309.34)
Year ended 31.03.2021
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
On disallowance under the Income Tax Act 102.18 3.49 - 105.67
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 102.18 3.49 - 105.67
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book balance and tax
balance of fixed assets (464.19) 3.51 - (460.68)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) (464.19) 3.51 - (460.68)
Net Deferred tax asset/(liability) (362.01) 7.00 - (355.01)
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30C. Tax expense
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

March 312022

March 31 2021

A. Current Tax

Current tax on profit for the year 705.70 373.27

Total (A) 705.70 373.27

B. Deferred Tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (52.47) (7.00)

Charge in respect of deferred tax for earlier years -

Total (B) (52.47) (7.00)

C. Prior year Tax

Change / (Credit) in respect of current tax for earlier years 31.32 -

Total (C) 31.32 -

D. Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss - (A)+(B)+(C) 684.55 366.27

E. Tax expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (6.80) -

Total Tax Expense /(benefit) 691.35 366.27

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate:
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021

Profit/(loss) before tax 2,450.41 1,221.68
Enacted tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense/(benefit) at statutory tax rate 616.77 307.50
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to
reported income tax expense:
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits 6.00 6.87
Others 61.78 51.90
Tax expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 6.80
Tax expense for the year 691.35 366.27
Effective income tax rate 26.66% 29.98%
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31. Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31,2022, March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Financial assets
Note Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars
Numbers | March31, | March31, | March31, | March31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Amortised cost
Advance 73 0.73 5.40 0.73 5.40
Banked energy Units 73 12.47 12.47
Trade receivable 7.1 1,523.80 1,059.35 1,523.80 1,059.35
Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 184.03 37717 184.03 37717
Bank Balance other than above 7.2 10.75 8.70 10.75 8.70
FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments (unquoted) 4.0 42.03 0.03 42.03 0.03
Total assets 1,773.81 1,450.65 1,773.81 1,450.65
Financial liabilities
Note Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars gumbers March31,| March31,| March31,| March31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Amortised cost
Borrowings 11.1&14.1 790.81 378.20 790.81 378.20
Trade payables 14.2 212.02 721.56 212.02 721.56
Other financial liabilities and lease liabilities 11.2&14.3 211.10 210.40 211.10 210.40
Total liabilities 1,213.93 1,310.16 1,213.93 1,310.16

The management assessed that fairvalue of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,and other current financial
assetsand liabilities approximate their carryingamounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.The fair value of
the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
betweenwilling parties, otherthaninaforced orliquidation sale.

Thefollowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i) Long-term fixed-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific
country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this
evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected losses of these receivables. ii) Fair values of the Company’s interest-
bearingborrowingsandloansare determined by using DCF method using discountrate that reflects the issuer'sborrowing rate asat the
end of the reporting period. The own non- performanceriskasatMarch 31,2022 was assessed to be insignificant.

32. Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on
recurring basis as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at March 31, 2022
Quoted prices Significant Significant
Particulars in active markets |observable inputs | unobservable inputs Total
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Asset
Advance 0.73 - 0.73
Banked energy Units 12.47 12.47
Trade receivable 1,523.80 - 1,523.80
Cash and cash equivalents 184.03 - 184.03
Bank Balance other than above 10.75 10.75
FVTOCI
Investments - Non - current - Unquoted - 42.03 42.03
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 790.81 - 790.81
Trade payables 212.02 - 212.02
Other financial liabilities and lease liabilities 211.10 - 211.10
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at March 31, 2021
Quoted prices Significant Significant
Particulars in active markets |observable inputs | unobservable inputs Total
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Asset
Amortised cost
Advance 5.40 - 5.40
Trade receivable 1,059.35 - 1,059.35
Cash and cash equivalents 37717 - 37717
Bank Balance other than above 8.70 8.70
Investments - Non - current - Unquoted - 0.03 0.03
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 378.20 - 378.20
Trade payables 721.56 - 721.56
Other financial liabilities and lease liabilities 210.40 - 210.40

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial assets, current
borrowingsand other currentfinancial liabilities are areasonable approximation of their fair values.
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Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The fairvalue of the financial assets and liabilities are at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial assets, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The estimated fair value amounts as at March 31, 2022 have been measured as at that
date. Assuch, the fairvalues of these financialinstruments subsequent to reporting date may be different than the amounts reported at
each year-end.The investmentsin Level-3 hierarchy has been valued at cost approach to arrive at the fair value as there is vide range of
possible fair value measurement and the cost represents the estimate of fair value within that range considering the purpose and
restriction onthe transferability of the instruments.There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

33. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its

operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects
onitsfinancial performance. The primary market risk to the company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses foreign currency
borowingstomitigate foreign exchange relatedrisk exposures.

The Board of Directorsreviews and agrees policies formanaging each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit
risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts
receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing
counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties,
takinginto accounttheirfinancial position, past experience and otherfactors.

Tradeand otherreceivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics
of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on
creditriskassessment.

Thefollowingtable gives detailsinrespect of percentage of revenues generated from top customerand top 10 customers:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021

Revenue from top customer 2,791.74 1,971.43

Revenue from top 10 customers 7,950.27 5,189.05

One customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31, 2022, One customers accounted for
more than 10% of the receivables forthe yearended March 31,2022. One customersaccounted formore than 10% of the revenue
fortheyearMarch 31,2021, however Two customers accounted for more than 10% of the receivables for the yearended March 31,

2021.
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Investments

T in Lakhs

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good
credit rating. The company does not expect any losses from non- performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any
significant concentration of exposures to specificindustry sectors.

Liquidityrisk

Liquidity riskis the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages
itsliquidity risk through credit limits with banks.

Theworking capital position of the Company is given below:

Particulars Note As at As at
Number 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 184.03 37717
Total 184.03 37717

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31,2022, March 31,

2021
Particulars As at On demand Less than 1 year Between 1-5 More than 5
years years
Borrowings
(i) Short term Borrowings
March 31,2022 790.81 -
March 31,2021 297.20 -
(i) Long term Borrowings
March 31,2022 -
March 31,2021 81.00
Trade payables March 31,2022 212.02 -
March 31,2021 721.56 -
Other financial liabilities March 31,2022 209.24 -
March 31,2021 205.76 -

Foreign Currencyrisk

The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in U.S. dollars,
British pound sterling and euros) and foreign currency borrowings (primarily in U.S. dollars, British pound sterling and euros). A
significant portion of the Company’srevenuesare in these foreign currencies, while a significant portion of its costs are in Indian rupees.
Asaresult, ifthe value of the Indian rupee appreciatesrelative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s revenues measured in rupees
may decrease. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods
and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. The Company's management meets on a periodic basis to formulate the
strategy forforeign currency risk management.

Consequently, the Company management believes that the borrowings in foreign currency and its assets in foreign currency shall
mitigate the foreign currency risk mutually to some extent
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The following table presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as of March 31,2022 and March
31,2021
Particulars As at

Assets
Trade receivables

usD EURO Pound /Sterling Total

March 31,2022 -
March 31, 2021 -

Liabilities

Trade payable March 31,2022 -
March 31,2021 -

Borrowings March 31,2022 -

March 31, 2021 -

March 31, 2022 - -
March 31, 2021 - - - -

Net assets/(liabilities)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the currency USD on account of outstanding trade receivables and trade payables in USD.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
numberbelowindicates anincreasein profit or equity where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. Fora 5% weakening
ofthe INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be

negative.
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021
Impact on profit or (loss) for the year Nil Nil

Fora 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be equivalentamount of impact on the profitas mentionedin
theabovetable.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt
obligationswith floatinginterestratesandinvestments.

Interestrate sensitivity analysis
If interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the company's profit for the year ended would have
impacted in the following manner:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 March 312021
Increase / (decrease) in the Profit for the year 8.31) (21.75)

If interest rates were 1% lower, the company's profit would have increased by the equivalent amount as shown in the above table.

Capital management
The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its
shareholders. The same is done through a mix of either equity and/or preference and/or convertible and/or combination of short term

/longterm debtas may be appropriate.
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The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of its product, capital expenditure, operations and strategic
investment plans. The same is funded through a combination of capital sources be it either equity and/or preference and/or
convertible and/or combination of short term/long term debt as may be appropriate.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest cost and
elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio, and closely monitorsits judicious allocation amongst competing capital expansion projects
and strategic acquisitions, to capture market opportunities at minimumrisk.

The Company monitorsits capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debtincludes, interest bearing loans

andborrowingsless cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances otherthan cash and cash equivalentsand currentinvestments.

The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Cash and cash equivalents 184.03 377.17
Total cash (a)
Non-current borrowings - 81.00
Current borrowings 709.81 189.20
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 81.00 108.00
Total borrowings (b) 790.81 378.20
Net debt c=(b-a) 606.78 1.03
Share capital 864.18 864.18
Other Equity 9,908.13 8,208.49
Total equity (d) 10,772.31 9,072.67
Gearing ratio (c/d) 0.06 0.00
34. CSRExpenditure:
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021
a. Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 14.21 10.04
b. Amount spent during the year 15.50 10.10
Nature of CSR activities
a. Promoting education in rural areas 14.00 10.10
b. Contribution for Covid-19 disaster management fund 1.50
where provision is made with respect to liability incurred by entering into
a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year N.A N.A
Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years
FY 2020-2021 0.06 0.06
FY 2021-2022 1.29
Total 1.35 0.06
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36. Disclosure under Ind AS 116 - Leases
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 312022 | March 312021
Depreciation Charge for right of use assets by class of underlying asset 2.72 2.72
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 0.31 0.62
Expense relating relating to low value leases 0.26 0.33
Total Cash outflow for leases 0.26 0.33
Carrying amount of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period
by class of underlying asset 0.85 3.57
Maturity Analysis
Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Lease Liabilities
Within one year 1.86 4.64
1-5years - -
More than 5 years - -
Description of the Property Date of Date of Period of
Commencement Closure Lease
Marketing office rent, Tirupur 02/09/2019 01/09/2022 3
Head Office rent, Coimbatore 01/06/2019 31/05/2022 3

Weighted Average increamental borrowings rate used to recoginsed lease liability in the balance sheetis 12%

37. Allthefigures areinlakhs unless otherwise stated. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary
to correspondwith the currentyear’s classification / disclosure
38. The Code on Social Security 2020 has been notified in the Official Gazette on 29th September 2020. The effective date from which

the changesare applicableisyet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Impact, if any, of the change will be assessed and
accountedinthe periodinwhichthe said code becomeseffective and the rules framed thereunderare published

39. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax
assessmentsunderthe lncome TaxAct, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.
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40.

41.
42.
43.
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ii

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made there under.

Company hasnotenteredinto any transactions with companies struck off under Companies Act,2013.

The companyhasnotbeen declared asawilful defaulter by any bank orfinancial institution.

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested any fund, which are material either individually or in aggregate (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whetherrecorded inwriting or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend orinvestin other persons or entitiesidentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The company has not received any fund, which are material either individually orin aggregate, from any person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly orindirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

44. Eventsafterreporting period

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 25" May, 2022 recommended a final dividend of Z.1.20/- per equity share for the
year ended March 31, 2022 (previous year final dividend of ¥ 1.00/- per share), subject to approval of shareholders. On approval,
the dividend outgo is expected to be ¥103.70/- Lakhs based on number of shares outstandingasatMarch 31,2022.

Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying 1-44

notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

For VKS AIYER & Co SV ALAGAPPAN ALALITHA

Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director

Firm Registration No.000066S DIN: 00002450 DIN: 00003688

‘Ffasrt:;'N'VASAN M SHANMUGAM M SHYAMALA
Chief Financial Officer Company Secreta

Membership No. 013729 AC% N)é. 24464ry

Place: Coimbatore
Date : 25" May, 2022
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